
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
September 1, 2016 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:30 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 
p.m.) 


 
None. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:30 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar. Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The following items 
were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 4, 2016 Regular Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re El Bonita Wellfield.  The GM provided an overview 


of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
V-B. (6:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft Urban Water Management Plan Update.  The 


GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
V-C. (7:13 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Progress on USDA Loan/Bond and Review of 


Other District Loans.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  Direction was given to staff to proceed with the GM recommendation to pay off 
the smaller State loan and move forward with refinancing the private placement loan.   


 
V-D. (7:52 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water Agency Open House 


regarding Decision 1610 EIR.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue made additional comments.  
Further discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:26 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Russian River Flow 
4. River Lane Property Sale 
5. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:41 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would be out of town from September 9 to 


October 3. 
2. Direct Lipinski shared an article regarding tainted water in New Zealand. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:47 p.m.) 
 
 
At 8:47 p.m. President Lipinski announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  However, 
the GM announced he had no information to share regarding the scheduled Closed Session item.  
Therefore, the Closed Session item (Conference with Legal Counsel re Anticipated Litigation) 
was removed from the Agenda.   
 


 2







 3


VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:48 p.m.) 
 
1. Urban Water Management Plan 
2. Sonoma County Water Agency EIR  
3. USDA Loan and other District debt 
4. Water Audit Program 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:51 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:30 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:26 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:41 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:47 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






 
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


October 6, 2016, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 1, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 16-10, 2015 Urban Water 


Management Plan (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Progress on USDA Loan/Bond and Review of Other District 


Loans (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water Agency Environmental Impact 


Report regarding Decision 1610 EIR (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Water Audit Program 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
  
  


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : October 6, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  ADOPTION OF THE DISTRICT'S 2015 URBAN WATER 
MANAGEMENT PLAN (UWMP) UPDATE 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Hold a Public Hearing on the adoption of the District's 2015 


Urban Water Management Plan Update (UWMP) and approve Resolution 16-10 
which adopts the 2015 UWMP and reaffirms Method 1, gallons per capita per day 
approach, for meeting the water conservation targets of the Water Conservation 
Act of 2009 (SB X7-7).    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District is tasked with updating its UWMP for the 2015 cycle.  
This update was due July 1, 2016 but because the late provision of guidelines, the 
efforts and uncertainty related to drought water use restrictions, California Urban Water 
Conservation Coalition reporting requirements and the fact of doing this report inhouse, 
we have aimed for this meeting as the adoption meeting for the UWMP.  We have 
discussed this document previously, specifically reviewing the population and water use 
projections and revisions to the Water Shortage Contingency Plan at the August 
meeting and the draft document at the September meeting.     
 
The UWMP follows the guidelines provided by the California Department of Water 
Resources.  It provides a comprehensive review of the Districts water operations, 
current and historical water use, projections of future supplies, reliability estimates 
of the District's supplies and an update of the District's Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan.  This Plan is organized into chapters as follows: 
 


 Chapter 1 “Introduction and Overview” – Includes legislative background 
for the UWMP requirements. 


 Chapter 2 “Plan Preparation” – Includes information on the process for  
development of this Plan, along with coordination and outreach efforts. 


 Chapter 3 “System Description” – Details the service area, climate, history 
and other relevant system information. 


 Chapter 4 “System Water Use” – Evaluates the overall historical and 
projected demand of the system within its service area. 







2015 UWMP  2 
October 6, 2016 


 


 Chapter 5 “SB X7-7 Baselines and Targets” – Describes methods for 
calculating baseline and target water consumption, and includes 2015 
compliance information with SB X7-7. 


 Chapter 6 “System Supply” – Describes the sources of water available to 
the District. 


 Chapter 7 “Water Supply Reliability Assessment” – A description of the 
water system reliability out to 2035, including projections for normal, single-
dry, and multiple-dry years. 


 Chapter 8 “Water Shortage Contingency Planning” – Describes the 
District’s plan for dealing with water shortage. 


 Chapter 9 “Demand Management Measures” – Discusses efforts by the 
District to reduce demand through water efficiency programs and 
conservation. 


 Chapter 10 “Plan Adoption, Submittal, and Implementation” – Lists the 
District’s adoption, submittal and implementation of its 2015 Plan. 


 Appendices include the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and other 
supporting documentation.   


 
The UWMP is a major planning document for the District.  It contains the "truth" about 
the District.  We will go into the plan for basic information about the District, such as 
service area population and projected water use, and other governmental agencies and 
private entities will look to this UWMP for basic information about the District.  For 
example, in the refunding of the Private Placement Loan, the prospective refunders 
wanted a copy of the 2015 UWMP for information about us.  The UWMP is on our 
website and is easily available public information about the District.  Observations: 
 


 We don't expect much growth in District population and District water use should 
remain relative flat during the planning period which goes out to 2035.   This Plan 
is consistent with the 2010 UWMP in these regards. 


 
 DWR requires the UWMP to include some methodology to demonstrate that a 


water agency will reduce its water use by 20% compared to the baseline - 
Method 1 which is the 80% of baseline gallons per capita per day (gpcd) 
approach and 3 other more complicated approaches.  The District's approach in 
2010 UWMP was Method 1 (gpcd).  That is easy to do and show, and we are 
meeting those targets.  As discussed last month, I see no reason to change.  


 
 The District is doing much better than the gpcd targets set in 2010.  The 2015 


target set in 2010 was 102 gpcd; we achieved 76.  The 2020 target is 91 gpcd 
which we will meet if we stay on our trend of reducing system water losses.   


 
 The drought restrictions have 'interfered' with or confounded the 2015 actual 


results.  We have no way of knowing what will happen when District customers' 
water use rebounds.  I expect the rebound to take some time, especially if other 
parts of the State remain in drought conditions.   


   
 Water loss reduction has played an important part of the District's overall 


reduction in gpcd from 2010.  Overall water production reduced 20% and 7% of 







2015 UWMP  3 
October 6, 2016 


 


that can be attributed to water loss reduction.  District water users reduced their 
water use (by sales) by 13% since 2010, water losses have been reduced by 
40% in that time period.    


 
 Regardless of the rebound effect and whether our beyond 2025 targets are based 


on 12.5-10% or 15%, our water production estimates are well within the 
District's water license (1137 AF) and meet the State's requirement for a 20% 
reduction from the baseline water use as determined by the 1999-2008 baseline.  


 
We discuss the draft UWMP at the September meeting.  The main body of the report 
was distributed at that meeting, no changes have been made since then, so we are not 
redistributing with this agenda report.  We did not distribute the Appendices and they 
are attached to this agenda report.   
 
The 2015 Urban Water Management Plan Update is a valuable resource document for 
the District and staff recommend adoption of the Plan. 
 







Resolution No. 16-10 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 


DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS ADOPTING THE 2015 URBAN 


WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN  AND REAFFIRMING METHOD 1, 
GALLONS PER CAPITA PER DAY APPROACH, FOR MEETING 


THE WATER CONSERVATION TARGETS OF THE WATER 


CONSERVATION ACT OF 2009 (SB  X7-7)   


 WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act (UWMP Act), which is 
codified at California Water Code 10610 et seq, requires that every urban water supplier 
which provides 3,000 acre feet or more of water annually (AFY) or which directly or 
indirectly supplies water for municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers shall 
prepare an Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP), the primary objective of which is to 
plan for the conservation and efficient use of water; and 


WHEREAS, the Water Conservation Act of 2009 (SB X7-7), which is codified at 
California Water Code 10608 et seq, has the general goal of a 20 percent reduction in 
water use Statewide, and requires each urban retail water supplier to develop urban 
water use targets and an interim urban water use target, in accordance with specified 
requirements and report those targets in its 2010 UWMP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) supplies less than 
1,000 AFY but has more than 3,500 customers and thus must comply with both Acts; 
and 


WHEREAS, SB X7-7 requires that the urban water supplier adopt one of four 
methods to report on achieving the 20% reduction in individual water supplier water use 
by 2020 and the targets shall be reported in the 2015 UWMP and 


WHEREAS, staff have determined that Method 1, the gallons per capita per day 
approach (Method 1), is the most sensible approach for developing water use targets 
under SBx7-7 because it is the easiest to calculate and understand approach to 
demonstrate that the District is meeting the 20% reduction target, and has reported such 
targets in the 2010 UWMP and reaffirmed this approach in the 2015 UWMP; and 


WHEREAS, the District has prepared a 2015 UWMP covering the District to 
meet the requirements of the UWMP Act; and 


WHEREAS, the 2015 UWMP and the method used to comply with SB X7-7 
water use reduction targets must be reaffirmed after public review and a public hearing 
by the District Board of Directors and must be filed with the California Department of 
Water Resources; and 


WHEREAS, the District has prepared a 2015 UWMP covering the District to 
meet the requirements of the Urban Water Management Planning Act; and 







Resolution 16-10 - Adoption of 2015 UWMP  2 
October 6, 2016 


WHEREAS, on September 16, 2016, the District circulated for public review a 
draft of the 2010 UWMP, in compliance with the requirements of the UWMP Act, and a 
duly noticed public hearing was held on October 6, 2016, by the District Board of 
Directors in accordance with said notice; and 


WHEREAS, the District use of Method 1 to comply with SB X7-7 and the targets 
associated with meeting the requirements of SB X7-7 are included in the District’s 2015 
UWMP, and were the subject of a duly noticed public hearing held on October 6, 2016, 
by the District in accordance with said notice; and 


WHEREAS, the District coordinated preparation of the 2015 UWMP with other 
appropriate agencies in the area; provided notices to the County of Sonoma and the 
Sonoma County Water Agency; and encouraged the active involvement of diverse 
social, cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior to 
and during the preparation of the plan as more fully described in the 2015 UWMP, in 
compliance with the requirements of the UWMP Act; and 


WHEREAS, a copy of the draft 2015 UWMP was made available for public 
inspection at the District’s office and on the District’s website on September 16, 2016 
and at the Guerneville Branch of the County of Sonoma Public Library on September 16, 
2016; and 


WHEREAS, on October 6, 2016, the District Board of Directors held a public 
hearing on the 2015 UWMP and on the reaffirmation of Method 1 of SB X7-7, notice of 
the time and place of which was published in the Sonoma West Times, a newspaper of 
general circulation on September 21, 2016 and September 28, 2016; and 


WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors have reviewed and considered all 
comments received on the adoption of Method 1 and the draft 2015 UWMP. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 


 1. Method 1 of SBx7-7 is the appropriate approach for the District use to  
report its compliance with meeting the water use reduction targets of SB X7-7 and the 
targets developed shall be included in the 2015 UWMP.  


2. The District’s 2015 UWMP is based on substantial evidence, includes 
reasonable assumptions about future conditions, and meets all requirements of the 
Urban Water Management Planning Act. 


3.   Method 1 and the 2015 UWMP are hereby approved and adopted. 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on October 
6, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
 







Resolution 16-10 - Adoption of 2015 UWMP  3 
October 6, 2016 


 
 


           
      Tim Lipinski 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


UDirector    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder   ___    
Tim Lipinski    ___    
Gaylord Schaap   ___  
Richard Holmer   ___    
Pip Marquez de la Plata  ___    







Resolution 16-10 - Adoption of 2015 UWMP  4 
October 6, 2016 


 







 


    1


Appendix A.  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
A.1.  Water Shortage Emergency Response  
During declared shortages, or when a shortage declaration appears imminent, the 
General Manager, or his designated representative(s), shall be responsible for 
notification of the appropriate personnel and agency representatives.  The 
personnel and agencies to be contacted include: The District Board of Directors, 
District Staff, the Russian River & Monte Rio Fire Protection Districts, the California 
Division of Drinking Water, the Sonoma County Office of Emergency Services and 
such other agencies and/or persons as deemed appropriate.  The District may also 
notify all customers through its automated calling service, as appropriate.  The 
District’s general response to any emergency is also described in the District’s 
Emergency Preparedness Response and Recovery Plan.   
 
The District Plan includes responses to regional and statewide drought emergencies. 
 In most of these cases where the requested reduction is 20% or less, the District 
would specify a list of water use restrictions but not declare Stage I of the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan.  The possible water use restrictions include: 
 


1. The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk is prohibited.  
2. Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, unless 


the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle is prohibited.  
3. Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature, unless the 


water is recirculated, is prohibited. 
4. Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours following 


measurable precipitation is prohibited. 
5. Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water to 


customers on request; and 
6. Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of choosing 


not to have towels and linens laundered daily and prominently display notice of 
this option.  
 


During situations that require 20% or less water use, District will rely extensively on 
public information to let people know of the need to reduce water use.   
 
A.1.1.  Emergency Response Check List. 


 
The following Table A-1 summarizes the actions the District will evaluate during a 
water supply emergency.  
 







 


    2


Table A-1.  Possible Disaster Response Activities 


Examples of Potential Actions to Discuss 
Check if 


Discussed 
Determine what constitutes a proclamation of a water shortage.  
Stretch existing water storage.  
Obtain additional water supplies.  
Develop alternative water supplies.  
Determine where the funding will come from.  
Contact and coordinate with other agencies.  
Create an Emergency Response Team/Coordinator.  
Create a catastrophe preparedness plan.  
Put employees/contractors on-call.  
Develop methods to communicate with the public.  
Develop methods to prepare for water quality interruptions.  


 
 
A.2.  Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals 
The District has a three-stage Emergency Response Plan (Table 8-1) to invoke 
during declared water shortages.  The Emergency Response Plan includes voluntary 
and mandatory reductions, depending on the causes, severity, and anticipated 
duration of the water supply shortage.  
 
Table A‐2 Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan (DWR Table 8‐1) 


 


Stage   Percent Supply 
Reduction1 


 


Water Supply Condition  
 


Add additional rows as needed 


         .I 


20‐30% 
 Regional or Statewide drought declaration, or local reduction in 
water supply requiring 20‐30% reduction, short term reduction in 
water use  


II  31‐50%   Reduction in water supply requiring 31‐50% reduction in water use 


III  >50%   Greater than 50% reduction in water supply 
1 One stage in the Water Shortage Contingency Plan must address a water shortage of 50%. 


NOTES: 


 


A.2.1  Priority by Use 
Priorities for use of available potable water during shortages are based on the legal 
requirements set forth in the California Water Code, Sections 350-358.  Water 
allocations are established for all customers according to the following ranking 
system: 
 
 Minimum health and safety allocations for interior residential needs  (includes 







 


    3


single family, multi-family, hospitals and convalescent facilities, retirement and 
mobile home communities, and fire fighting and public safety) 


 Commercial, industrial, institutional/governmental operations  (where water is 
used for manufacturing and for minimum health and safety allocations for 
employees and visitors), to maintain jobs and economic base of the community 
(not for landscape uses) 


 Permanent agriculture (orchards, vineyards, and other commercial agriculture 
which would require at least five years to return to production).  


 Existing landscaping  
 New customers, proposed projects without permits when shortage declared. 
 
A.2.2  Health and Safety Requirements 
Based on commonly accepted estimates of interior residential water use in the 
United States, Table A-3 indicates per capita health and safety water requirements. 
In Stage I, customers may adjust either interior or outdoor water use (or both), in 
order to meet the voluntary water reduction goal. 
 
Under the Stage II the District would ask customers for greater reductions in use, 
including indoor uses to reduce their usage to essential interior water use.  Stage 
III water use reductions would require that most customers make changes in their 
interior water use habits (for instance, not flushing toilets unless “necessary” or 
taking less frequent showers).  
 
 


Table A-3 
Per Capita Health and Safety Water Quantity Calculations 


 Non-Conserving Fixtures Habit Changes 1 Conserving Fixtures 2 
Toilets 3 flushes x 5.5 gpf  16.5 3 flushes x 5.5 gpf 16.5 5 flushes x 1.6 gpf 8.0 


Shower 4 min x 4.0 gpm 16.0 4 min x 3.0 gpm 12.0 5 min x 2.0 10.0 


Washer 12.5 gpcd 12.5 11.5 gpcd 11.5 11.5 gpcd  11.5 


Kitchen  4 gpcd 4.0 2 gpcd 2.0 3 gpcd 3.0 


other 4 gpcd 4.0 2 gpcd 2.0 3 gpcd 3.0 


Total (gpcd)  53.0  44.0  35.5 


1  Reduced shower use results from shorter and reduced flow.  Reduced washer use results from fuller 
loads. 


2  Fixtures include ULF 1.6 gpf toilets, 2.0 gpm showerheads and efficient clothes washers. 
 
 


A.2.3  Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms 
Specific criteria for triggering the District's rationing stages are shown in Table A-4. 
 Examples of possible reduction methods are shown in Table A-5.   
 







 


    4


Table A-4 
Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms 


Percent 
Reduction of 


Supply 
Stage I 20 - 30%  Stage II 30 -50%  Stage III  >50%  


Water Supply Condition 


Current Supply 


Total supply is70 – 80% of 
“normal.” or conservation is 
needed to stretch existing 


supplies, or participation in a 
regional or statewide drought 


emergency 
OR 


Total supply is 69 – 50% of 
“normal.” or conservation is 
needed to stretch existing 


supplies 
OR  


Total supply is less than49% 
of  “normal.” or conservation is 


needed to stretch existing 
supplies 


OR 


Future Supply 


Projected supply insufficient to 
provide 80% of “normal” 


deliveries for the next two 
years. 


OR 


Projected supply insufficient 
to provide 70% of “normal” 
deliveries for the next two 


years. 
OR 


Projected supply insufficient to 
provide 60% of “normal” 


deliveries for the next two 
years. 


OR 


Water Quality 


Contamination of water supply 
(exceeds primary drinking 


water standards) for 3 days 
OR 


Contamination of water 
supply (exceeds primary 


drinking water standards) for 
up to one week 


OR 


Contamination of the water 
supply (exceeds primary 


drinking water standards) for 
over one week 


OR 


Disaster Loss Disaster loss Disaster loss Disaster Loss 


 
 







 


    5


 
 


Table A‐5: Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Uses (DWR Table 8‐2) 


Stage   
Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Users 


 


Additional 
Explanation or 
Reference 


 


Penalty, 
Charge, or 
Other 


Enforcement? 
 


Add additional rows as needed 


 
Landscape ‐ Restrict or prohibit runoff from 
landscape irrigation 


This is required at all 
times. 


Yes 


 
Other ‐ Customers must repair leaks, breaks, and 
malfunctions in a timely manner 


This is required at all 
times. 


Yes 


I 
CII ‐ Restaurants may only serve water upon 
request 


   No 


I 
CII ‐ Lodging establishment must offer opt out of 
linen service 


   No 


I  Other ‐ Require automatic shut of hoses     Yes 


I 
Other ‐ Prohibit use of potable water for washing 
hard surfaces 


   Yes 


I 
Landscape ‐ Limit landscape irrigation to specific 
days 


   Yes 


II  Landscape ‐ Prohibit all landscape irrigation     Yes 


II 
Other ‐ Prohibit vehicle washing except at facilities 
using recycled or recirculating water 


   Yes 


           


NOTES: 


 


A.3.  Water Shortage Ordinance 


The District has adopted a Wastage of Water Ordinance (3090.90) listed below.   
 
 3090.90 Wastage of Water:  No consumer shall cause or permit any 
water furnished to their property by the District to run to waste in any gutter or 
otherwise.  Notwithstanding section 3080.30-3080.60, the District may, after one 
warning, terminate the service of any consumer for failure to comply with the 
foregoing rule.  Restoration of service may be conditioned upon installation of a flow 
restrictor on the consumer’s service.  Fees will be charged for the flow restrictor and 
installation or removal in addition to the turn-on charge provided for in section 
3020.112. 
 
The District would consider implementing a moratorium on new connections during 
declared water shortages, and revisions to the wastage of water ordinance or 
adoption of other water shortage-related ordinances as appropriate to the type of 
emergency.  A draft emergency water shortage ordinance is in Appendix D. 







 


    6


 


A.3.1.  Excessive Use Penalties  
Any customer violating the regulations and restrictions on water use shall receive a 
verbal warning for the first such violation.  Upon a second violation, the customer 
shall receive a written warning.  If the written warning is not complied with water 
service may be disconnected; it shall be restored only upon payment of the turn-on 
charge fixed by the Board of Directors. 
 
 


A.4.  Mechanism to Determine Reductions in Water Use 
Under normal water supply conditions, potable water production figures are 
recorded daily.  All customers are metered and are billed on a bimonthly basis.  
Production totals are reported monthly to the Field Supervisor and the General 
Manager, and are incorporated into the District’s water production report and the 
General Manager’s Report presented at each monthly Board meeting.  Bimonthly 
sales information is also incorporated into the General Manager’s monthly report.   
 
During a Stage II or Stage III water shortage, or during a water emergency, daily 
production figures will be reported to the Field Manager, as appropriate.  The Field 
Manager will compare the weekly production to the target weekly production to 
verify that the reduction goal is being met.  Weekly reports will be forwarded to the 
General Manager, the Board of Directors and the State Division of Drinking Water or 
other appropriate regulatory agencies.  If reduction goals are not met, the General 
Manager will notify the Board of Directors so that corrective action can be taken.  
 
A.5.  Revenue and Expenditure Impacts and Measures to Overcome 
Impacts 


The District maintains a reserve equal to 15% of its annual operating budget 
expenses (approximately $1.75 million Operating Budget expenses) for the 
purposes of dealing with emergencies and disaster-related expenses.  This reserve 
amount is $264,000 for FY 16.  The District has additional budget reserves for 
economic uncertainty, debt repayment and capital expenses.  The total District 
Reserve Policy amount is approximately $1 million.    
 
The analysis shown in Table 8-4 Cost Impacts Associated with Water Shortages 
assumes that water revenues are consistent with metered use in the 2005/2006 
fiscal years upon which the District’s Rate Model is based.  It also assumes that 
total district operating expenses would increase during these major water shortage 
events with greater increases during larger shortages.  Table 8-4 shows the 
estimated cost impacts of the major shortage events: 







 


    7


 
Table A-6  Cost Impacts Associated with Water Shortages 
 Stage i Stage II Stage III 


% Reduction in Annual Sales 20% 35% 50% 
Reduction in Water Sales Revenue $120,000 $210,000 $300,000 


Increased Operating Costs $50,000 $100,000
 


$150,000 


Total Net Reduction in Revenue 170,000 $310,000 $450,000 
 
As shown in Table 8-4, the District would have sufficient reserves to sustain a major 
(greater than Stage 1) water shortage emergency for over one year, but the 
financial impacts of these unlikely events would be substantial.  During this period 
the Board of Directors would have ample time to assess the need for rate increases 
consistent with the type of water shortage.   It may be that a rate restructuring 
would be needed to encourage reduced water use while developing sufficient 
revenues for sustained operations.   
 
  







 


    1


APPENDIX B 
 
 


RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION – URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
 


Resolution No. 16-10 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS ADOPTING THE 2015 URBAN WATER 


MANAGEMENT PLAN  AND REAFFIRMING METHOD 1, GALLONS PER 


CAPITA PER DAY APPROACH, FOR MEETING THE WATER 


CONSERVATION TARGETS OF THE WATER CONSERVATION ACT OF 


2009 (SB  X7-7)   


 WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act (UWMP Act), which is codified 
at California Water Code 10610 et seq, requires that every urban water supplier which provides 
3,000 acre feet or more of water annually (AFY) or which directly or indirectly supplies water for 
municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers shall prepare an Urban Water Management 
Plan (UWMP), the primary objective of which is to plan for the conservation and efficient use of 
water; and 


WHEREAS, the Water Conservation Act of 2009 (SB X7-7), which is codified at 
California Water Code 10608 et seq, has the general goal of a 20 percent reduction in water 
use Statewide, and requires each urban retail water supplier to develop urban water use targets 
and an interim urban water use target, in accordance with specified requirements and report 
those targets in its 2010 UWMP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) supplies less than 1,000 AFY 
but has more than 3,500 customers and thus must comply with both Acts; and 


WHEREAS, SB X7-7 requires that the urban water supplier adopt one of four methods 
to report on achieving the 20% reduction in individual water supplier water use by 2020 and the 
targets shall be reported in the 2015 UWMP and 


WHEREAS, staff have determined that Method 1, the gallons per capita per day 
approach (Method 1), is the most sensible approach for developing water use targets under 
SBx7-7 because it is the easiest to calculate and understand approach to demonstrate that the 
District is meeting the 20% reduction target, and has reported such targets in the 2010 UWMP 
and reaffirmed this approach in the 2015 UWMP; and 


WHEREAS, the District has prepared a 2015 UWMP covering the District to meet the 
requirements of the UWMP Act; and 


WHEREAS, the 2015 UWMP and the method used to comply with SB X7-7 water use 
reduction targets must be reaffirmed after public review and a public hearing by the District 
Board of Directors and must be filed with the California Department of Water Resources; and 







 


    2


WHEREAS, the District has prepared a 2015 UWMP covering the District to meet the 
requirements of the Urban Water Management Planning Act; and 


WHEREAS, on September 16, 2016, the District circulated for public review a draft of 
the 2010 UWMP, in compliance with the requirements of the UWMP Act, and a duly noticed 
public hearing was held on October 6, 2016, by the District Board of Directors in accordance 
with said notice; and 


WHEREAS, the District use of Method 1 to comply with SB X7-7 and the targets 
associated with meeting the requirements of SB X7-7 are included in the District’s 2015 UWMP, 
and were the subject of a duly noticed public hearing held on October 6, 2016, by the District in 
accordance with said notice; and 


WHEREAS, the District coordinated preparation of the 2015 UWMP with other 
appropriate agencies in the area; provided notices to the County of Sonoma and the Sonoma 
County Water Agency; and encouraged the active involvement of diverse social, cultural, and 
economic elements of the population within the service area prior to and during the preparation 
of the plan as more fully described in the 2015 UWMP, in compliance with the requirements of 
the UWMP Act; and 


WHEREAS, a copy of the draft 2015 UWMP was made available for public inspection 
at the District’s office and on the District’s website on September 16, 2016 and at the 
Guerneville Branch of the County of Sonoma Public Library on September 16, 2016; and 


WHEREAS, on October 6, 2016, the District Board of Directors held a public hearing on 
the 2015 UWMP and on the reaffirmation of Method 1 of SB X7-7, notice of the time and place 
of which was published in the Sonoma West Times, a newspaper of general circulation on 
September 21, 2016 and September 28, 2016; and 


WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors have reviewed and considered all comments 
received on the adoption of Method 1 and the draft 2015 UWMP. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 


 1. Method 1 of SBx7-7 is the appropriate approach for the District use to  
report its compliance with meeting the water use reduction targets of SB X7-7 and the 
targets developed shall be included in the 2015 UWMP.  


2. The District’s 2015 UWMP is based on substantial evidence, include 
sreasonable assumptions about future conditions, and meets all requirements of the 
Urban Water Management Planning Act. 


3.   Method 1 and the 2015 UWMP are hereby approved and adopted. 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on October 6, 2016, by the 
following vote: 
 
 







 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder   ___x    
Tim Lipinski    ___x    
Gaylord Schaap   ___x  
Richard Holmer   ___x    
Pip Marquez de la Plata  ___x    


 
 


           
      Tim Lipinski 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


    3







Appendix C.1 60 Day Notification Letter to County of 
Sonoma







 


    2


2.  Copy of Published Notice of Publication 
 
Insert Copy of Notice of Publication







 


    3


3.  List of Public Participation and Public Information Activities 
 


 60 Day Notice Letter (above in A) to County of Sonoma and Sonoma County 
Water Agency on April 19, 2016. 


 
 Announcement of UWMP process schedule on District website 


(www.sweetwatersprings.com), updated as appropriate, started on April 19, 
2016. 


 
 Population and Water Use Projections, and revisions to Water Shortage 


Contingency Plan discussed at regular District Board meeting on August 4, 2016. 
 SB X7-7 gpcd goals also discussed at this meeting and direction to continue to 
use Method 1 provided by Board. 


 
 August Board meeting summary to local newspapers  (Sonoma West Times and 


News, The Sonoma County Gazette, Russian River Monthly) that included 
discussion of UWMP population and water use projections and the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan. 


 
 Draft UWMP discussed at regular District Board meeting on September 1, 2016.  


 
 Letters to County of Sonoma and Sonoma County Water Agency informing them 


that the public hearing on the Draft Plan will be on October 6, 2016. 
 


 Press release that the Draft UWMP was available online and in hard copy at the 
District Office and Guerneville Branch of the Sonoma County Public Library to 
local newspapers (Sonoma West Times and News, The Sonoma County 
Gazette, Russian River Monthly), Russian River Chamber of Commerce, Monte 
Rio Chamber of Commerce, Guernewood Park Neighborhood Association, 
Friends of Rio Nido, Friends of Villa Grande, and Russian River Watershed 
Protection Committee on September 15, 2016. 


 
 2015 UWMP and SB X7-7 Method 1 adopted by resolution at October 6, 2016 


regular Board meeting after noticed public hearing.







 


    1


Appendix D.  Draft Emergency Water Shortage Resolution 
 


 RESOLUTION XX-XX 
 


AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT DECLARING A WATER SHORTAGE AND PROVIDING 


PROVISIONS FOR CONSERVING WATER AND PROTECTING PUBLIC 
HEALTH  


 
  


WHEREAS, Northern California has been experiencing severe drought conditions 
for XX [months/years] [or other condition that necessitates ordinance], which has 
created water shortage conditions with District water supplies, and;  
 
WHEREAS, the water shortage conditions have created a water supply emergency 
such that District supplies are cut XX%; and  
 
WHEREAS, failure to adopt water conserving measures and provide methods for 
enforcing those measures could cause the District’s water supplies to be severely 
depleted and have the effect of endangering public health in the District’s service 
area; and  
 
WHEREAS, District staff have developed a water shortage contingency plan which 
sets out water reduction goals and priority water uses to reduce water use and 
protect public health by extending District water supplies; and 
 
WHEREAS, District staff have determined that supplies have been reduced XX 
percent and that level of reduction is consistent with Stage XX of the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to sections 31026 and 31027 of the California Water Code, a 
county water district has the power to restrict the use of district water during an 
emergency caused by a drought or other threatened or existing water shortage 
conditions and to enact an ordinance that restricts and prohibits certain water uses 
during a water shortage, which ordinance becomes effective immediately upon 
adoption; and 
 
WHEREAS, it essential that the provisions of this ordinance be enacted immediately 
to protect public health. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Stage X of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan is hereby declared. 
 
Section 2.  The following uses of water are declared nonessential and are 
prohibited: 
 







 


    2


 The excessive use, loss, or escape of water through breaks, leaks or 
malfunctions in the water user's plumbing or distribution facilities. 


 The washing of vehicles, building exteriors, sidewalks, driveways, parking 
areas, tennis courts, patios or other paved areas without the use of a positive 
shut-off nozzle on the hose, which results in excessive run-off, except where 
necessary to dispose of liquids or substances that would endanger the 
public's health and safety. 


 
Section 3.  [Insert additional water use prohibitions as applicable by the severity of 
the emergency.] 
 
Section 4.  The  General Manager shall forthwith direct and cause the 
disconnection of the water service of any person or customer not in compliance with 
this ordinance. Such service shall be restored only upon the payment of the 
District’s turn-on charge and other applicable charges as provided in the District 
Policies and Procedures. 
 
Section 5.  [ADD CEQA COMPLIANCE LANGUAGE DEPENDING ON NATURE OF 
EMERGENCY] 


Section 6.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 
is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
of the Ordinance.  The Board hereby declares that it would have passed this 
Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof 
irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses 
or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
Section 7.  Effective Date. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on Month day, 20XX, by the 
following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Board Member 1       
Board Member 2       
Board Member 3       
Board Member 4       
Board Member 5       


 
 


           
       
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Water Audit Report for:
Reporting Year:


All volumes to be entered as: ACRE-FEET PER YEAR


Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments


WATER SUPPLIED Pcnt: Value:


Volume from own sources: 8 658.000 acre-ft/yr 7 acre-ft/yr
Water imported: acre-ft/yr acre-ft/yr
Water exported: acre-ft/yr acre-ft/yr


Enter negative % or value for under-registration
WATER SUPPLIED: 658.000 acre-ft/yr Enter positive % or value for over-registration


.


AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION
Billed metered: 7 518.000 acre-ft/yr


Billed unmetered: acre-ft/yr


Unbilled metered: acre-ft/yr Pcnt: Value:


Unbilled unmetered: 8.225 acre-ft/yr 1.25% acre-ft/yr


AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 526.225 acre-ft/yr


WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 131.775 acre-ft/yr


Apparent Losses Pcnt: Value:


Unauthorized consumption: 1.645 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr


Customer metering inaccuracies: 5 10.571 acre-ft/yr 2.00% acre-ft/yr
Systematic data handling errors: 1.295 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr


Apparent Losses: 13.511 acre-ft/yr


Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 118.264 acre-ft/yr


WATER LOSSES: 131.775 acre-ft/yr


NON-REVENUE WATER
NON-REVENUE WATER: 140.000 acre-ft/yr


= Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered


SYSTEM DATA


Length of mains: 9 65.0 miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: 8 3,800


Service connection density: 58 conn./mile main


Yes
Average length of customer service line: ft


Average operating pressure: 7 75.0 psi


COST DATA


Total annual cost of operating water system: 9 $1,733,000 $/Year


Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): 10 $2.73
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 7 $300.00 $/acre-ft


 WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:


 PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:


     1: Volume from own sources


     2: Customer metering inaccuracies


     3: Billed metered


 Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:


$/100 cubic feet (ccf)


              <----------- Enter grading in column 'E' and 'J' ---------->


Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed             


*** YOUR SCORE IS: 74 out of 100 ***


A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score


Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed


Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied


Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? 


 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 Reporting Worksheet


Enter a positive value, otherwise a default percentage of 1.25% (of billed metered) is applied and a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed


2015 1/2015 - 12/2015
Sweetwater Springs Water District  (4910004/0028)


?


?


?


?


?


? Click to access definition


?


?


?


?


?


?


Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the input 
data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades


?


?


?


?


?


?


(length of service line, beyond the property boundary, 
that is the responsibility of the utility)


Use buttons to select
percentage of water supplied


OR
value


?Click here: 
for help using option 
buttons below


?


?


?


?


+


+ Click to add a comment


 WAS v5.0


+


+


+


+


+


+


American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.


?


?


?


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+ Use Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses


?


To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where 
the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it.


Reporting Worksheet      1AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0


Appendix E.  AWWA Water Audit Reporting Worksheet







Water Audit Report for: Sweetwater Springs Water District  (4910004/0028)
Reporting Year:


System Attributes:
Apparent Losses: 13.511                               acre-ft/yr


+              Real Losses: 118.264                             acre-ft/yr


=            Water Losses: 131.775                             acre-ft/yr


Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): 77.43 acre-ft/yr


Annual cost of Apparent Losses: $16,065


Annual cost of Real Losses: $35,479 Valued at Variable Production Cost


Performance Indicators:


Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: 21.3%


Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: 3.1%  Real Losses valued at Variable Production Cost


Apparent Losses per service connection per day: 3.17 gallons/connection/day


Real Losses per service connection per day: 27.78 gallons/connection/day


Real Losses per length of main per day*: N/A


Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: 0.37 gallons/connection/day/psi


From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): 118.26 acre-feet/year


1.53


* This performance indicator applies for systems with a low service connection density of less than 32 service connections/mile of pipeline


 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 System Attributes and Performance Indicators


*** YOUR WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE IS: 74 out of 100 ***


Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:


2015 1/2015 - 12/2015


Return to Reporting Worksheet to change this assumpiton


?


?


American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.


 WAS v5.0


Financial:


Operational Efficiency:


Performance Indicators      2AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0







 


    2


APPENDIX F – SB X7-7 VERIFICATION TABLES 







             Process Water Deduction


SB X7‐7 tables 4‐C, 4‐C.1, 4‐C.2, 4‐C.3, 4‐C.4 and 4‐D


A supplier that will use the process water deduction will complete the appropriate tables in Excel, 


submit them as a separate upload to the WUE data tool, and include them in its UWMP. 


Target Method 2


SB X7‐7 tables 7‐B, 7‐C, and 7‐D


A supplier that selects Target Method 2 will contact DWR (gwen.huff@water.ca.gov) for SB X7‐7 tables 


7‐B, 7‐C, and 7‐D. 
Target Method 4


These tables are only available online at 


http://www.dwr.water.ca.gov/wateruseefficiency/sb7/committees/urban/u4/ptm4.cfm               A 


supplier that selects Target Method 4 will save the tables from the website listed above, complete the 


tables, submit as a separate upload to WUE data, and include them with its UWMP.   


SB X7‐7 Verification Form Version FINAL.1
Table 4‐C.4 has been modified from the FINAL version. 


WUEdata Entry Exceptions


The data from the  tables below will not be entered into WUEdata tables (the tabs for these tables' 


worksheets are colored purple). These tables will be submitted as separate uploads, in Excel, to 


WUEdata.


Appendix F.  SB X7-7 Verification Forms







SB X7‐7 Table 0: Units of Measure Used in UWMP*           
(select one from the drop down list)                 


Acre Feet


*The unit of measure must be consistent with Table 2‐3 


NOTES:  







Parameter Value
2008 total water deliveries 942.4


2008 total volume of delivered recycled water ‐                         


2008 recycled water as a percent of total deliveries  #N/A


Number of years in baseline period1, 2 10


Year beginning baseline period range 1997


Year ending baseline period range
3 2006


Number of years in baseline period 5


Year beginning baseline period range 2003


Year ending baseline period range
4 2007


1 If the 2008 recycled water percent is less than 10 percent, then the first baseline period is a continuous 10‐year period.  If the am


delivered in 2008 is 10 percent or greater, the first baseline period is a continuous 10‐ to 15‐year period.                                          2 


requires that the baseline period is between 10 and 15 years. However, DWR recognizes that some water suppliers may not have


of baseline data. 


3 The ending year must be between December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2010.


4 The ending year must be between December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2010.


NOTES:


 SB X7‐7 Table‐1: Baseline Period Ranges


Baseline


10‐ to 15‐year    


baseline period


5‐year              


baseline period 







Units
Acre Feet


Acre Feet


Percent


Years


Years


mount of recycled water 


The Water Code 


e the minimum 10 years 







3. DWR Population Tool


4. Other


DWR recommends pre‐review


NOTES: Census data plus Sonoma County population estimates


SB X7‐7 Table 2: Method for Population Estimates


Method Used to Determine Population


(may check more than one)


1. Department of Finance  (DOF)


DOF Table E‐8 (1990 ‐ 2000) and  (2000‐2010)  and


DOF Table E‐5 (2011 ‐ 2015) when available 


2. Persons‐per‐Connection Method







Population


Year 1 1997 8173


Year 2 1998 8198


Year 3 1999 8210


Year 4 2000 8261


Year 5 2001 8263


Year 6 2002 8306


Year 7 2003 8333


Year 8 2004 8,368


Year 9 2005 8,415


Year 10 2006 8,445


Year 11


Year 12


Year 13


Year 14


Year 15


Year 1 2003 8,333


Year 2 2004 8,368


Year 3 2005 8,415


Year 4 2006 8,445


Year 5 2007 8,066


7,7552015


NOTES:


5 Year Baseline Population


2015 Compliance Year Population


SB X7‐7 Table 3: Service Area Population


Year


10 to 15 Year Baseline Population







Exported 


Water 


Change in 


Dist. 


System 


Storage


(+/‐) 


Indirect 


Recycled 


Water
This column 


will remain 


blank until 


SB X7‐7 


Table 4‐B is 


completed.   


 Water 


Delivered 


for 


Agricultur


al Use 


Process 


Water
This 


column 


will remain 


blank until 


SB X7‐7  


Table 4‐D 


is 


completed. 


Year 1 1997 1,100        1,100      


Year 2 1998 1,044               1,044 


Year 3 1999 1,068               1,068 


Year 4 2000 1,093               1,093 


Year 5 2001 1,086               1,086 


Year 6 2002 1,137               1,137 


Year 7 2003 1,047               1,047 


Year 8 2004 1,034               1,034 


Year 9 2005 947                     947 


Year 10 2006 980                     980 


Year 11 0 ‐                          ‐   


Year 12 0 ‐                          ‐   


Year 13 0 ‐                          ‐   


Year 14 0 ‐                          ‐   


Year 15 0 ‐                          ‐   


1,053


Year 1 2003 1,047      1,047      


Year 2 2004        1,034         1,034 


Year 3 2005            947             947 


Year 4 2006            980             980 


Year 5 2007            937             937 


989


657.7 ‐                     658 


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Gross Water Use 


2015
* NOTE that the units of measure must remain consistent throughout the UWMP,  as reported in 


Table 2‐3


 10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Gross Water Use 


10 ‐ 15 year baseline average gross water use


 5 Year Baseline ‐ Gross Water Use 


5 year baseline average gross water use


SB X7‐7 Table 4: Annual Gross Water Use *


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


Volume 


Into 


Distributi


on System
This column 


will remain 


blank until 


SB X7‐7 


Table 4‐A is 


completed.   


Deductions


Annual 


Gross 


Water 


Use 







Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1 1997 1099.6                1,100 


Year 2 1998 1044.3                1,044 


Year 3 1999 1067.5                1,068 


Year 4 2000 1093.2                1,093 


Year 5 2001 1086.2                1,086 


Year 6 2002 1136.5                1,137 


Year 7 2003 1046.6                1,047 


Year 8 2004 1033.7                1,034 


Year 9 2005 947.1                   947 


Year 10 2006 979.6                   980 


Year 11 0                       ‐   


Year 12 0                       ‐   


Year 13 0                       ‐   


Year 14 0                       ‐   


Year 15 0                       ‐   


Year 1 2003 1046.6                1,047 


Year 2 2004 1033.7                1,034 


Year 3 2005 947.1                   947 


Year 4 2006 979.6                   980 


Year 5 2007 936.7                   937 


657.7                   658 


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Russian River Underflow


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015
* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 


System(s)
Complete one table for each source. 


Name of Source Russian River Underflow


This water source is:







Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 3


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3







Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 4


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015







Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 5


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015







Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0
* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 6


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015







Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 8


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 7







Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 9


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3







Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 10


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015







Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 11


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015







Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0
* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 12


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015







Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 14


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 13







Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0


Volume   


Entering 


Distribution 


System 


Meter Error 


Adjustment* 


Optional


(+/‐)Meter 


Error 


Adjustment*


Corrected 


Volume 


Entering 


Distribution 


System


Year 1       1,997  0


Year 2       1,998  0


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


This water source is:


The supplier's own water source


A purchased or imported source


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


SB X7‐7 Table 4‐A:  Volume Entering the Distribution 
Name of Source Source 15


10 to 15 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 


3Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3







Year 3       1,999  0


Year 4       2,000  0


Year 5       2,001  0


Year 6       2,002  0


Year 7       2,003  0


Year 8       2,004  0


Year 9       2,005  0


Year 10       2,006  0


Year 11              ‐    0


Year 12              ‐    0


Year 13              ‐    0


Year 14              ‐    0


Year 15              ‐    0


Year 1       2,003  0


Year 2       2,004  0


Year 3       2,005  0


Year 4       2,006  0


Year 5       2,007  0


0
* Meter Error Adjustment ‐ See guidance in Methodology 1, Step 3 of 


Methodologies Document


NOTES:


5 Year Baseline ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015 Compliance Year ‐ Water into Distribution System


2015











Service 


Area 


Populatio


n
Fm SB X7‐7  


Table 3


Annual 


Gross 


Water 


Use
Fm SB X7‐7


Table 4


Daily Per 


Capita 


Water 


Use 


(GPCD) 


Year 1 1997 8,173        1,100        120          


Year 2 1998 8,198        1,044        114          


Year 3 1999 8,210        1,068        116          


Year 4 2000 8,261        1,093        118          


Year 5 2001 8,263        1,086        117          


Year 6 2002 8,306        1,137        122          


Year 7 2003 8,333        1,047        112          


Year 8 2004 8,368        1,034        110          


Year 9 2005 8,415        947           100          


Year 10 2006 8,445        980           104          


Year 11 ‐           


Year 12 ‐           


Year 13 ‐           


Year 14 ‐           


Year 15 ‐           


           113 


Service 


Area 


Populatio


n
Fm SB X7‐7


Table 3


Gross 


Water 


Use
Fm SB X7‐7


Table 4


Daily Per 


Capita 


Water 


Use


Year 1 2003        8,333         1,047  112          


Year 2 2004        8,368         1,034  110          


Year 3 2005        8,415             947  100          


Year 4 2006        8,445             980  104          


Year 5 2007        8,066             937  104          


           106 


7,755        658           76            2015


 5 Year Baseline GPCD


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


5 Year Average Baseline GPCD


 2015 Compliance Year GPCD


SB X7‐7 Table 5: Gallons Per Capita Per Day 


Baseline Year
Fm SB X7‐7 Table 3


10 to 15 Year Baseline GPCD


10‐15 Year Average Baseline GPCD







113


106


2015 Compliance Year GPCD 76


SB X7‐7 Table 6: Gallons per Capita per 
10‐15 Year Baseline GPCD


5 Year Baseline GPCD


NOTES:







Supporting Documentation


Method 1 SB X7‐7 Table 7A


Method 2
SB X7‐7 Tables 7B, 7C, and 7D 
Contact DWR for these tables


Method 3 SB X7‐7 Table 7‐E


Method 4 Method 4 Calculator


SB X7‐7 Table 7: 2020 Target Method


Select Only One


Target Method


NOTES:







10‐15 Year Baseline  


GPCD
  2020 Target GPCD


113 91


SB X7‐7 Table 7‐A: Target Method 1


NOTES:







Agency May 


Select More 


Than One as 


Applicable


Percentage of 


Service Area 


in This 


Hydrological 


Region


Hydrologic Region


"2020 Plan" 


Regional 


Targets


Method 3 


Regional 


Targets 


(95%)


North Coast 137 130


North Lahontan 173 164


Sacramento River 176 167


San Francisco Bay 131 124


San Joaquin River 174 165


Central Coast 123 117


Tulare Lake 188 179


South Lahontan 170 162


South Coast 149 142


Colorado River 211 200


0


SB X7‐7 Table 7‐E: Target Method 3 


Target
(If more than one region is selected, this value is calculated.)


NOTES:







5 Year


Baseline GPCD


From SB X7‐7      


Table 5


Maximum 2020 


Target1
Calculated


2020 Target2
Confirmed 2020 


Target


106 101 91                             91


SB X7‐7 Table 7‐F: Confirm Minimum Reduction for 2020 Target


1 Maximum 2020 Target is 95% of the 5 Year Baseline GPCD except for suppliers at or below 


100 GPCD.
2 2020 Target is calculated based on the selected Target Method, see SB X7‐7 Table 7 and 


corresponding tables for agency's calculated target.     


NOTES: 







Confirmed


2020 Target


Fm SB X7‐7


Table 7‐F


10‐15 year 


Baseline GPCD


Fm SB X7‐7


Table 5


2015 Interim 


Target GPCD


91 113 102


SB X7‐7 Table 8: 2015 Interim Target GPCD







Extraordi


nary 


Events


Weather 


Normalizati


on


Economic 


Adjustment


76 102            ‐                   ‐                       ‐    ‐        76                   


NOTES: 


SB X7‐7 Table 9: 2015 Compliance


Actual 2015 GPCD
2015 Interim 


Target GPCD


Optional Adjustments  (in GPCD)


Enter "0" if Adjustment Not Used
TOTAL 


Adjustm


ents


Adjusted 


2015 GPCD 







76                  YES


2015 GPCD 


(Adjusted if 


applicable)


Did Supplier 


Achieve 


Targeted 


Reduction for 


2015?







 


    3


APPENDIX G – CUWCC COVERAGE REPORTS - 2013, 2014 







1. Conservation Coordinator 
provided with necessary resources 
to implement BMPs?


Name:


Title:


Email:


General Manager


Stephen Mack


smack@sweetwatersprings.com


2. Water Waste Prevention Documents


Sweetwater Springs Water District826


WW Document Name WWP File Name WW Prevention URL WW Prevention Ordinance 
Terms Description


Option A Describe the 
ordinances or terms of 
service adopted by your 
agency to meet the water 
waste prevention 
requirements of this BMP.


Waste of Water Policy: District 
Policy 3090.90.  prohibits 
customers allowing water to 
run off to waste and allow 
termination of service after 
one warning.


Option B Describe any 
water waste prevention 
ordinances or 
requirements adopted by 
your local jurisdiction or 
regulatory agencies within 
your service area.


Option C Describe any 
documentation of support 
for legislation or 
regulations that prohibit 
water waste.


Option D Describe your 
agency efforts to 
cooperate with other 
entities in the adoption or 
enforcement of local 
requirements consistent 
with this BMP.


Option E Describe your 
agency support positions 
with respect to adoption of 
legislation or regulations 
that are consistent with 
this BMP. 


Option F Describe your 
agency efforts to support 
local ordinances that 
establish permits 
requirements for water 
efficient design in new 
development.


At Least As effective As No


Exemption


Comments:


No


BMP 1.1 Operation Practices


Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency


CUWCC BMP Retail Coverage Report 2013


ON TRACK


Appendix G.  CUWCC BMP Coverage Reports, 2013-2014







BMP 1.1 Operation Practices


Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency


CUWCC BMP Retail Coverage Report 2013


ON TRACK







826 Sweetwater Springs Water District


Completed Standard Water Audit Using AWWA Software? Yes


AWWA File provided to CUWCC? Yes


AWWA-WAS-v5-09152014 Cal2013.xls


AWWA Water Audit Validity Score?   74


Complete Training in AWWA Audit Method   Yes


Complete Training in Component Analysis Process?   Yes


Component Analysis?   Yes


Repaired all leaks and breaks to the extent cost effective?   Yes


Locate and Repar unreported leaks to the extent cost effective?   Yes


Maintain a record keeping system for the repair of reported leaks, including time of 
report, leak location, type of leaking pipe segment or fitting, and leak running time from 


report to repair. Yes


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2013


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency


BMP 1.2 Water Loss Control ON TRACK


Provided 7 Types of Water  Loss Control Info


Leaks Repairs Value Real 
Losses


Value Apparent 
Losses


Miles Surveyed Press Reduction Cost Of 
Interventions


Water Saved 
(AF)


142 61914 18563 0.5 False 1602921


Comments:


At Least As effective As No


NoExemption







826 Sweetwater Springs Water District


Numbered Unmetered Accounts No


Metered Accounts billed by volume of use Yes


Number of CII Accounts with Mixed Use
Meters


0


Conducted a feasibility study to assess merits of a 
program to provide incentives to switch mixed-use 
accounts to dedicated landscape meters? 


No


Feasibility Study provided to CUWCC? No


Completed a written plan, policy or program to test, 
repair and replace meters


Yes


Comments:


Date:


Uploaded file name:


1/1/0001


At Least As effective As No


NoExemption


BMP 1.3 Metering With Commodity


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2013


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency


ON TRACK







Use Canadian Water Wastewater Association Rate Design ModelImplementation 
Option:


Implementation (Water Rate Structure)


826 Sweetwater Springs Water District


NoAgency Provide Sewer Service:


Customer Class Water Rate Type Conserving
Rate?


(V) Total Revenue
Comodity Charges


(M) Total Revenue 
Fixed Carges


1
4
2
7


Single-Family Increasing Block Yes 349578 1155074


Multi-Family Increasing Block Yes 96921 294420


Commercial Increasing Block Yes 121769 83584


Institutional Increasing Block Yes 20696 17956


Fire Lines Increasing Block Yes 0 5160


588964 1556194


27Calculate: V / (V + M) %


Canadian Water and Wastewater Association


Use 3 years average instead of most recent year


Upload file:


Comments:


At Least As effective As No


The inclining rate structure gives a clear signal on increasing water use.


NoExemption


BMP 1.4 Retail Conservation Pricing


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2013


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency







826 Sweetwater Springs Water District Retail


The list of wholesale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply 
with the BMP


Description of all other Public Outreach programs 


Agency Name ID number


Sonoma County Water Agency 208


p Public Outreach Program List Number


1
5
7
2
4
2


Flyers and/or brochures (total copies), bill stuffers, messages printed on bill, 
information packets


400


General water conservation information 400


Total 800


Number Media Contacts Number


News releases 12


Total 12


Does your agency perform Public Outreach programs? Yes


Sonoma County Water Agency


Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year? No


Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes


Did at least one website update take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes


Public Information Program Annual Budget


Comments:


The name of agency, contact name and email address if not CUWCC Group 1 members


0NoExemption


At Least As effective As No


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 


BMP 2.1 Public Outreach


2013


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency


ON TRACK







826 Sweetwater Springs Water District Retail


Materials meet state education framework requirements?


District cooperates with Sonoma County Water Agency for this.  


Materials distributed to K-6?


District cooperates with Sonoma County Water Agency for this.  


 Materials distributed to 7-12 students? (Info Only)


Annual budget for school education program:


Description of all other water supplier education programs 


District cooperates with Sonoma County Water Agency for this.  


Sonoma County Water Agency


YesDoes your agency implement School Education  programs?


The list of wholesale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply 
with the BMP


Yes


Yes


No


0NoExemption


Comments:


At Least As effective As No


Program is implemented by Sonoma County Water Agency


BMP 2.2 School Education Programs


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2013


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency


ON TRACK







1. Conservation Coordinator 
provided with necessary resources 
to implement BMPs?


Name:


Title:


Email:


General Manager


Stephen Mack


smack@sweetwatersprings.com


2. Water Waste Prevention Documents


Sweetwater Springs Water District826


WW Document Name WWP File Name WW Prevention URL WW Prevention Ordinance 
Terms Description


Option A Describe the 
ordinances or terms of 
service adopted by your 
agency to meet the water 
waste prevention 
requirements of this BMP.


Waste of Water Policy: District 
Policy 3090.90.  prohibits 
customers allowing water to 
run off to waste and allow 
termination of service after 
one warning.


Option B Describe any 
water waste prevention 
ordinances or 
requirements adopted by 
your local jurisdiction or 
regulatory agencies within 
your service area.


Option C Describe any 
documentation of support 
for legislation or 
regulations that prohibit 
water waste.


Option D Describe your 
agency efforts to 
cooperate with other 
entities in the adoption or 
enforcement of local 
requirements consistent 
with this BMP.


Option E Describe your 
agency support positions 
with respect to adoption of 
legislation or regulations 
that are consistent with 
this BMP. 


Option F Describe your 
agency efforts to support 
local ordinances that 
establish permits 
requirements for water 
efficient design in new 
development.


At Least As effective As No


Exemption No


BMP 1.1 Operation Practices


Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency


CUWCC BMP Retail Coverage Report 2014


ON TRACK







Comments:


BMP 1.1 Operation Practices


Foundational Best Managemant Practices for Urban Water Efficiency


CUWCC BMP Retail Coverage Report 2014


ON TRACK







826 Sweetwater Springs Water District


Completed Standard Water Audit Using AWWA Software? Yes


AWWA File provided to CUWCC? Yes


AWWA-WAS-v5-09152014 Cal2014.xls


AWWA Water Audit Validity Score?   74


Complete Training in AWWA Audit Method   Yes


Complete Training in Component Analysis Process?   Yes


Component Analysis?   Yes


Repaired all leaks and breaks to the extent cost effective?   Yes


Locate and Repar unreported leaks to the extent cost effective?   Yes


Maintain a record keeping system for the repair of reported leaks, including time of 
report, leak location, type of leaking pipe segment or fitting, and leak running time from 


report to repair. Yes


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2014


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency


BMP 1.2 Water Loss Control ON TRACK


Provided 7 Types of Water  Loss Control Info


Leaks Repairs Value Real 
Losses


Value Apparent 
Losses


Miles Surveyed Press Reduction Cost Of 
Interventions


Water Saved 
(AF)


154 42014 17103 0.5 False 1056658


Comments:


At Least As effective As No


NoExemption







826 Sweetwater Springs Water District


Numbered Unmetered Accounts No


Metered Accounts billed by volume of use Yes


Number of CII Accounts with Mixed Use
Meters


0


Conducted a feasibility study to assess merits of a 
program to provide incentives to switch mixed-use 
accounts to dedicated landscape meters? 


No


Feasibility Study provided to CUWCC? No


Completed a written plan, policy or program to test, 
repair and replace meters


Yes


Comments:


Date:


Uploaded file name:


1/1/0001


At Least As effective As No


NoExemption


BMP 1.3 Metering With Commodity


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2014


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency


ON TRACK







Use Canadian Water Wastewater Association Rate Design ModelImplementation 
Option:


Implementation (Water Rate Structure)


826 Sweetwater Springs Water District


NoAgency Provide Sewer Service:


Customer Class Water Rate Type Conserving
Rate?


(V) Total Revenue
Comodity Charges


(M) Total Revenue 
Fixed Carges


1
4
2
6


Single-Family Increasing Block Yes 357899 1219132


Multi-Family Increasing Block Yes 99515 331757


Commercial Increasing Block Yes 122617 86821


Institutional Increasing Block Yes 13772 19185


Fire Lines Increasing Block Yes 1.25 5123


593804.25 1662018


26Calculate: V / (V + M) %


Canadian Water and Wastewater Association


Use 3 years average instead of most recent year


Upload file:


Comments:


At Least As effective As No


The inclining rate structure gives a clear signal on increasing water use.  There is a 2x difference between Tiers 1 and 2 
and approximately 1.5x between Tiers 2-3 and Tiers 3-4.  


NoExemption


BMP 1.4 Retail Conservation Pricing


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2014


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency







826 Sweetwater Springs Water District Retail


The list of wholesale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply 
with the BMP


Description of all other Public Outreach programs 


p Public Outreach Program List Number


1
5
7
2
4
4


Flyers and/or brochures (total copies), bill stuffers, messages printed on bill, 
information packets


400


General water conservation information 400


Total 800


Number Media Contacts Number


News releases 12


Total 12


Public Outreah Additional Programs


Meetings with local Chamgers of Commerce


Does your agency perform Public Outreach programs? Yes


Sonoma County Water Agency


Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes


Did at least one contact take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes


Did at least one website update take place during each quater of the reporting year? Yes


Public Information Program Annual Budget


Comments:


The name of agency, contact name and email address if not CUWCC Group 1 members


0NoExemption


At Least As effective As No


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 


BMP 2.1 Public Outreach


2014


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency


ON TRACK







826 Sweetwater Springs Water District Retail


Materials meet state education framework requirements?


District cooperates with Sonoma County Water Agency for this.  


Materials distributed to K-6?


District cooperates with Sonoma County Water Agency for this.  


 Materials distributed to 7-12 students? (Info Only)


Annual budget for school education program:


Description of all other water supplier education programs 


District cooperates with Sonoma County Water Agency for this.  


Sonoma County Water Agency


YesDoes your agency implement School Education  programs?


The list of wholesale agencies performing public outreach which can be counted to help the agency comply 
with the BMP


Yes


Yes


No


0NoExemption


Comments:


At Least As effective As No


Program is implemented by Sonoma County Water Agency


BMP 2.2 School Education Programs


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2014


Foundational Best Management Practices For Urban Water Efficiency


ON TRACK







GPCD in 2014


GPCD Target for 2018:


84.72


Biennial GPCD Compliance Table


Year


2010


2012


2014


2016


2018


Report


1


2


3


4


5


% Base


96.4%


92.8%


89.2%


85.6%


82.0%


GPCD


108.70


104.70


100.60


96.50


92.50


% Base


100%


96.4%


92.8%


89.2%


82.0%


GPCD


112.80


108.70


104.70


100.60


92.50


Target Highest Acceptable 
Bound


826 Sweetwater Springs Water District


92.50


Baseline GPCD: 112.78


ON TRACK


CUWCC BMP Coverage Report 2014







 


    1


Appendix H. UWMP Checklist 
 


Checklist Arranged by Subject 


 
CWC 


Section 


 
UWMP Requirement 


 
Subject 


 
Guidebook 
Location 


UWMP 
Location 


(Optional 
Column for 


Agency Use) 
10620(b) Every person that becomes an urban water 


supplier shall adopt an urban water 
management plan within one year after it has 
become an urban water supplier.  


Plan Preparation Section 2.1 Sections 
2.1, 2.5 


10620(d)(2) Coordinate the preparation of its plan with 
other appropriate agencies in the area, 
including other water suppliers that share a 
common source, water management 
agencies, and relevant public agencies, to 
the extent practicable. 


Plan Preparation Section 2.5.2 Section 1.3 


10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
water supplier has encouraged active 
involvement of diverse social, cultural, and 
economic elements of the population within 
the service area prior to and during the 
preparation of the plan. 


Plan Preparation Section 2.5.2 Section 2.1, 
Appendix B 


10631(a) Describe the water supplier service area.  System 
Description 


Section 3.1 Sections 
3.1, 3.2 


10631(a) Describe the climate of the service area of 
the supplier. 


System 
Description 


Section 3.3 Section 3.3 


10631(a) Provide population projections for  2020, 
2025, 2030, and 2035.  


System 
Description 


Section 3.4 Section 3.4 


10631(a) Describe other demographic factors affecting 
the supplier’s water management planning. 


System 
Description 


Section 3.4 Section 3.4 


10631(a) Indicate the current population of the service 
area.  


System 
Description and 
Baselines and 
Targets 


Sections 3.4 
and 5.4 


Section 3.4 


10631(e)(1) Quantify past, current, and projected water 
use, identifying the uses among water use 
sectors. 


System Water 
Use 


Section 4.2 Sections 
4.2-3 


10631(e)(3)(A) Report the distribution system water loss for 
the most recent 12-month period available.  


System Water 
Use 


Section 4.3 Table 4-2-3  


10631.1(a) Include projected water use needed for lower 
income housing projected in the service area 
of the supplier. 


System Water 
Use 


Section 4.5 Section 4.5 


10608.20(b) Retail suppliers shall adopt a 2020 water use 
target using one of four methods. 


Baselines and 
Targets 


Section 5.7 
and App E 


Section 5.2, 
Table 5-1 


10608.20(e) Retail suppliers shall provide baseline daily 
per capita water use, urban water use target, 


Baselines and 
Targets 


Chapter 5 and 
App E 


Section 5.2-
3, Table 5.-







 


    2


interim urban water use target, and 
compliance daily per capita water use, along 
with the bases for determining those 
estimates, including references to supporting 
data.  


1, 5-2 


10608.22 Retail suppliers’ per capita daily water use 
reduction shall be no less than 5 percent of 
base daily per capita water use of the 5 year 
baseline. This does not apply if the suppliers 
base GPCD is at or below 100.  


Baselines and 
Targets 


Section 5.7.2 Section 5.2-
3, Table 5.-
1, 5-2 


10608.24(a) Retail suppliers shall meet their interim target 
by December 31, 2015. 


Baselines and 
Targets 


Section 5.8 
and App E 


Section 5.2-
3, Table 5.-
1, 5-2 


10608.24(d)(2) If the retail supplier adjusts its compliance 
GPCD using weather normalization, 
economic adjustment, or extraordinary 
events, it shall provide the basis for, and data 
supporting the adjustment.  


Baselines and 
Targets 


Section 5.8.2 NA 


10608.36 Wholesale suppliers shall include an 
assessment of present and proposed future 
measures, programs, and policies to help 
their retail water suppliers achieve targeted 
water use reductions.  


Baselines and 
Targets 


Section 5.1 NA 


10608.40 Retail suppliers shall report on their progress 
in meeting their water use targets. The data 
shall be reported using a standardized form.  


Baselines and 
Targets 


Section 5.8 
and App E 


Section 5.2-
3, Table 5.-
1, 5-2 


10631(b) Identify and quantify the existing and planned 
sources of water available for 2015, 2020, 
2025, 2030, and 2035. 


System Supplies Chapter 6 Chapter 6 


10631(b) Indicate whether groundwater is an existing 
or planned source of water available to the 
supplier.   


System Supplies Section 6.2 Section 6.2 


10631(b)(1) Indicate whether a groundwater 
management plan has been adopted by the 
water supplier or if there is any other specific 
authorization for groundwater management.  
Include a copy of the plan or authorization. 


System Supplies Section 6.2.2 Section 6.2 


10631(b)(2) Describe the groundwater basin. System Supplies Section 6.2.1 Section 6.2 


10631(b)(2) Indicate if the basin has been adjudicated 
and include a copy of the court order or 
decree and a description of the amount of 
water the supplier has the legal right to 
pump. 


System Supplies Section 6.2.2 NA 


10631(b)(2) For unadjudicated basins, indicate whether 
or not the department has identified the basin 
as overdrafted, or projected to become 
overdrafted. Describe efforts by the supplier 
to eliminate the long-term overdraft condition. 


System Supplies Section 6.2.3 NA 


10631(b)(3) Provide a detailed description and analysis of 
the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water 
supplier for the past five years 


System Supplies Section 6.2.4 NA 


10631(b)(4) Provide a detailed description and analysis of 
the amount and location of groundwater that 
is projected to be pumped. 


System Supplies Sections 6.2 
and 6.9 


Section 6.2 







 


    3


10631(d) Describe the opportunities for exchanges or 
transfers of water on a short-term or long-
term basis. 


System Supplies  Section 6.7 NA 


10631(g) Describe the expected future water supply 
projects and programs that may be 
undertaken by the water supplier to address 
water supply reliability in average, single-dry, 
and multiple-dry years. 


System Supplies Section 6.8 Section 6.4 


10631(h) Describe desalinated water project 
opportunities for long-term supply.  


System Supplies Section 6.6 NA 


10631(j) Retail suppliers will include documentation 
that they have provided their wholesale 
supplier(s) – if any - with water use 
projections from that source.  


System Supplies Section 2.5.1 NA 


10631(j) Wholesale suppliers will include 
documentation that they have provided their 
urban water suppliers with identification and 
quantification of the existing and planned 
sources of water available from the 
wholesale to the urban supplier during 
various water year types.  


System Supplies Section 2.5.1 NA 


10633 For wastewater and recycled water, 
coordinate with local water, wastewater, 
groundwater, and planning agencies that 
operate within the supplier's service area. 


System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 


Section 6.5.1 Section 6.3 


10633(a) Describe the wastewater collection and 
treatment systems in the supplier's service 
area. Include quantification of the amount of 
wastewater collected and treated and the 
methods of wastewater disposal. 


System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 


Section 6.5.2  Section 6.3 


10633(b) Describe the quantity of treated wastewater 
that meets recycled water standards, is being 
discharged, and is otherwise available for 
use in a recycled water project. 


System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 


Section 
6.5.2.2 


Section 6.3 


10633(c) Describe the recycled water currently being 
used in the supplier's service area. 


System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 


Section 6.5.3 
and 6.5.4 


Section 6.3 


10633(d) Describe and quantify the potential uses of 
recycled water and provide a determination 
of the technical and economic feasibility of 
those uses. 


System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 


Section 6.5.4 Section 6.3 


10633(e) Describe the projected use of recycled water 
within the supplier's service area at the end 
of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a description 
of the actual use of recycled water in 
comparison to uses previously projected. 


System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 


Section 6.5.4 Section 6.3 


10633(f) Describe the actions which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water and the 
projected results of these actions in terms of 
acre-feet of recycled water used per year. 


System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 


Section 6.5.5 NA 


10633(g) Provide a plan for optimizing the use of 
recycled water in the supplier's service area. 


System Supplies 
(Recycled 
Water) 


Section 6.5.5 NA 


10620(f) Describe water management tools and Water Supply Section 7.4 Section 6.1 







 


    4


options to maximize resources and minimize 
the need to import water from other regions. 


Reliability 
Assessment 


10631(c)(1) Describe the reliability of the water supply 
and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic 
shortage. 


Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 


Section 7.1 Section 7.1 


10631(c)(1) Provide data for an average water year, a 
single dry water year, and multiple dry water 
years 


Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 


Section 7.2 Section 7.2 


10631(c)(2) For any water source that may not be 
available at a consistent level of use, 
describe plans to supplement or replace that 
source. 


Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 


Section 7.1 NA 


10634 Provide information on the quality of existing 
sources of water available to the supplier and 
the manner in which water quality affects 
water management strategies and supply 
reliability 


Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 


Section 7.1 Section 7.1 


10635(a)  Assess the water supply reliability during 
normal, dry, and multiple dry water years by 
comparing the total water supply sources 
available to the water supplier with the total 
projected water use over the next 20 years.   


Water Supply 
Reliability 
Assessment 


Section 7.3 Section 7.3 


10632(a) and 
10632(a)(1) 


Provide an urban water shortage 
contingency analysis that specifies stages of 
action and an outline of specific water supply 
conditions at each stage. 


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.1 Chapter 8 
and 
Appendix A 


10632(a)(2) Provide an estimate of the minimum water 
supply available during each of the next 
three water years based on the driest three-
year historic sequence for the agency. 


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.9 Section 8.9 
and Table 8-
5 


10632(a)(3) Identify actions to be undertaken by the 
urban water supplier in case of a 
catastrophic interruption of water supplies. 


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.8 Section 8.8 


10632(a)(4) Identify mandatory prohibitions against 
specific water use practices during water 
shortages. 


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.2 Section 8.2 
and Table 8-
2 


10632(a)(5) Specify consumption reduction methods in 
the most restrictive stages.  


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.4 Section 8-4 
and Table 8-
3 


10632(a)(6) Indicated penalties or charges for excessive 
use, where applicable. 


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.3 Section 8.3 


10632(a)(7) Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of 
the actions and conditions in the water 
shortage contingency analysis on the 
revenues and expenditures of the urban 
water supplier, and proposed measures to 
overcome those impacts.  


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.6 Section 8.6 


10632(a)(8) Provide a draft water shortage contingency 
resolution or ordinance. 


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.7 Appendix A 


10632(a)(9) Indicate a mechanism for determining actual 
reductions in water use pursuant to the water 
shortage contingency analysis. 


Water Shortage 
Contingency 
Planning 


Section 8.5 Section 8.5 







 


    5


10631(f)(1) Retail suppliers shall provide a description of 
the nature and extent of each demand 
management measure implemented over the 
past five years. The description will address 
specific measures listed in code.  


Demand 
Management 
Measures 


Sections 9.2 
and 9.3 


Appendix ? 
CUWCC 
Annual 
Reports 


10631(f)(2) Wholesale suppliers shall describe specific 
demand management measures listed in 
code, their distribution system asset 
management program, and supplier 
assistance program.  


Demand 
Management 
Measures 


Sections 9.1 
and 9.3 


NA 


10631(i) CUWCC members may submit their 2013-
2014 CUWCC BMP annual reports in lieu of, 
or in addition to, describing the DMM 
implementation in their UWMPs. This option 
is only allowable if the supplier has been 
found to be in full compliance with the 
CUWCC MOU.  


Demand 
Management 
Measures 


Section 9.5 Appendix ? 
CUWCC 
Annual 
Reports 


10608.26(a) Retail suppliers shall conduct a public 
hearing to discuss adoption, implementation, 
and economic impact of water use targets.  


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Section 10.3 Section 10.2 


10621(b) Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public 
hearing, any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water that the urban water 
supplier will be reviewing the plan and 
considering amendments or changes to the 
plan.  


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Section 10.2.1 Section 10.3 


10621(d) Each urban water supplier shall update and 
submit its 2015 plan to the department by 
July 1, 2016. 


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Sections 
10.3.1 and 
10.4 


Appendix C 


10635(b)  Provide supporting documentation that Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan has been, or will 
be, provided to any city or county within 
which it provides water, no later than 60 days 
after the submission of the plan to DWR. 


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Section 10.4.4 Appendix C 


10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier made the plan available 
for public inspection, published notice of the 
public hearing, and held a public hearing 
about the plan.  


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Sections 
10.2.2, 10.3, 
and 10.5  


Appendix C 


10642 The water supplier is to provide the time and 
place of the hearing to any city or county 
within which the supplier provides water.   


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Sections 
10.2.1 


Appendix C 


10642 Provide supporting documentation that the 
plan has been adopted as prepared or 
modified. 


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Section 10.3.1  


10644(a) Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier has submitted this 
UWMP to the California State Library.  


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Section 10.4.3  


10644(a)(1) Provide supporting documentation that the 
urban water supplier has submitted this 
UWMP to any city or county within which the 
supplier provides water no later than 30 days 
after adoption. 


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Section 10.4.4  


10644(a)(2) The plan, or amendments to the plan, 
submitted to the department shall be 


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 


Sections 
10.4.1 and 


 







 


    6


submitted electronically. Implementation 10.4.2 
10645 Provide supporting documentation that, not 


later than 30 days after filing a copy of its 
plan with the department, the supplier has or 
will  make the plan available for public review 
during normal business hours. 


Plan Adoption, 
Submittal, and 
Implementation 


Section 10.5  


 
 
 





		Item V-A -2015 UWMP Adoption

		Item V-A.1 -Resolution 16-10 - 2015 UWMP Adoption

		Item V-A.2 UWMP Appendices

		Appendix A.  Water Shortage Contingency Plan

		A.1.  Water Shortage Emergency Response 

		A.2.  Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals

		A.2.1  Priority by Use

		A.2.2  Health and Safety Requirements

		A.2.3  Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms

		A.3.  Water Shortage Ordinance

		A.3.1.  Excessive Use Penalties 

		A.4.  Mechanism to Determine Reductions in Water Use



		A.5.  Revenue and Expenditure Impacts and Measures to Overcome Impacts



		APPENDIX B

		Appendix H. UWMP Checklist



		Checklist Arranged by Subject

		Appendix E. AWWA-WAS-v5-09152014 Cal2015.pdf

		Performance Indicators



		Appendix F.  SB X7-7Verification Form FINAL.pdf

		READ ME

		SB X7-7 Table 0

		SB X7-7 Table 1

		SB X7-7 Table 2

		SB X7-7 Table 3

		Tab 4 Copy

		SB X7-7 Table 4 - A

		Tab 5 Copy

		Tab 6 Copy

		SB X7-7 Table 7

		Tab 7-A Copy

		SB X7-7 Table 7-E

		Tab 7-F COpy

		Tab 8 Copy

		Tab 9 Copy



		Appendix G.  Sweetwater Springs WD BMP Coverage Report Final 2013.pdf

		Sweetwater Springs BMP11CoverageReportRetail draft 2013

		Sweetwater Springs BMP12CoverageReportRetail draft 2013

		Sweetwater Springs BMP13CCRMeteringWithCommodity draft 2013

		Sweetwater Springs BMP14CCRConservationPricing draft 2013

		Sweetwater Springs BMP21CCRPublicOutreach draft 2013

		Sweetwater Springs BMP22CCRSchoolEducationPrograms draft 2013

		Appendix G.1 Sweetwater Springs WD BMP Coverage Report Final 2014.pdf

		Sweetwater Springs BMP11CoverageReportRetail draft 2014

		Sweetwater Springs BMP12CoverageReportRetail draft 2014

		Sweetwater Springs BMP13CCRMeteringWithCommodity draft 2014

		Sweetwater Springs BMP14CCRConservationPricing draft 2014

		Sweetwater Springs BMP21CCRPublicOutreach draft 2014

		Sweetwater Springs BMP22CCRSchoolEducationPrograms draft 2014

		Sweetwater Springs GPCD draft 2014
















SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : October 6, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING PROGRESS WITH A POSSIBLE 
LOAN/BOND WITH USDA AND EXAMINING/REDUCING EXISTING DISTRICT DEBT  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
the progress with the loan/bond from the U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural 
Development (USDA) to fund the 2017 CIP and the progress with examining other 
District debt with the purpose of keeping the District's debt at manageable levels and 
being able to construct needed capital improvement projects, and provide direction to 
staff, including direction on whether to move forward in refinancing the Private 
Placement Loan and, if yes, which proposal to accept.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
2017 CIP: 
 
The District has been seeking funding through USDA for the FY17 CIP which is 
replacement of approximately 6,800 ft of existing main and 75 services on Old River Rd 
at Morningside east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive and include Orchard Rd and 
Foothill Drive and River Rd on river side of the road.   
 
The District has received notice that a loan for $2,579,000 for 40 years at 2.25% 
interest rate had been approved by USDA.  The District has responded in a timely 
fashion to accept the loan letter of conditions.  The District now has a year (from the 
date of the letter of conditions) to start construction and five years to use the funds.    
 
At the August Board meeting the Board also gave direction to staff to look at the 
alternative of splitting up the FY17 CIP into segments to see if and how this project 
could be constructed without borrowing funds.  Staff has received this information 
which states that the project can be split into 3 phases.  Attachment 1 shows a map of 
the phases and a cost summary.  Doing the project in this manner would cost 
approximately $100,000 more, without taking into consideration the unknown 
differences in having three projects bid at 3 different times versus one larger project bid 
once.   
 
The one major point made by this examination is that phase 1 - the Engineer estimates 
that the segment from Rio Nido to Foothill Drive can be constructed for approximately 
$802,000 which makes it fall within the District's single project amount for self-funding.  







USDA Loan and District Debt  2   
October 6, 2016 
                                                                 


 


This is the most critical segment to staff and we would recommend that if the project is 
split into 3 segments that this phase gets constructed first and as soon as possible.   
 
District Debt: 
 
Taking on the USDA loan would add approximately $100,000 to District annual debt 
payments which are currently in the $1 million range.  Below is a summary of District 
debt from the FY17 Budget Report: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – Approximately $1.6 million remain in the 
USDA bonds that were approved to purchase the District and make needed 
capital improvements, and refinanced in part in 2013 and 2014.  Paid off in 
2054.  Annual payment - $64,284, interest rate - 2.38%.   


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013.  Paid off in 2033, the FY17 payment is $566,508.    
Remaining principal is $6,941,000, interest rate - 3.60%. 


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  Paid off in 2021-22.  Annual payment - 
$170,168.50.  Remaining principal is $980,092.94, interest rate 2.95%. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012.  Remaining 
principal is $2,186,930.86, interest rate 4.75%. 


 
At the September meeting we discussed options for adjusting the numbers above.  We 
have paid off the smaller State Loan and thus have eliminated the annual payment for 
that loan.   
 
Refinancing the Private Placement Loan:  Brandis Tallman is moving forward with 
refinancing the Private Placement Loan.  Brandis Tallman put out a request for 
refinancing proposals and received responses on September and we discussed the 
responses in a phone call on September 28.  Attachment 2 is a summary of the 
responses with additional analyses provided by Brandis Tallman.  In summary, we have 
received responses better than originally estimated by Brandis Tallman.  The maximum 
annual savings is approximately $16,000 and the maximum total savings to the District 
is $165,000.  Observations: 
 


 JP Morgan Chase No Call gives the most savings to the District.  It has some 
provisions we may not like or may not be willing to agree to - no call, breakage 
fees, interest rate risk (it may be different next week), higher coverage rates. 


 
 Muni Fin Corp is the current holder (for City National Bank) of the private 


placement loan.  Their proposal just puts off the refinancing for two years at 
current interest rates. We discussed doing it this way last month but in our 
discussion we would have needed interest rates to stay at current levels.  This 
does the same thing but removes the risk that interest rates move upwards.  This 
would be the easiest approach - it doesn't require a new loan; they just give us 
an amendment to the current loan.   


 







USDA Loan and District Debt  3   
October 6, 2016 
                                                                 


 


 JP Morgan Chase Callable and BB&T Govt. Fin have similar savings for the 
District, callable at par (Muni Fin Corp is callable at 102%), the savings start 
immediately.  BB&T Govt. Fin has fewer conditions and the rate is locked now.   


 
None of these proposals affect the term of the PPL - it's paid off in 2028 with all 
proposals.  Nicki Tallman of Brandis Tallman will be at the Board meeting next week to 
discuss this so we can make a decision on which to choose (including no one) at the 
meeting.   
 
Moving Forward:  If we take on the USDA it makes sense to pay off the second, 
bigger State loan in 2018 (next year after we have the USDA loan in hand).  The total 
hit to the Budget would be approximately $557,000, plus $146,739 in a reserve account 
that is not included in District Reserves. Paying off this second State Loan reduces 
annual debt payments by $146,739 which is more than the USDA annual payment 
would be ($100,040). 
 
The District is in a good position whereby we have to make a decision where either 
direction is a good one.  Tables 1 and 2 show the financial results of these two options 
through Fiscal Year 2024.  The two options: 
 
Get the USDA Loan (Table 1) - this approach would have the District get the USDA 
loan this year, start construction late Spring, early Summer this year, pay off the 
second State Loan.  District debt payments would go to approximately $968,000 
annually (currently $1,035,961) and would be at that amount until the Private 
Placement Loan (annual loan payment is $234,012 now before refinancing) is paid off in 
2028.  
 
Self Finance the 2017 CIP (Table 2) - Don't get the USDA loan, construct the 2017 
CIP in segments doing the 1st segment this summer and the other two after skipping 
FY19, don't pay off the second State Loan but it's done in 2022.  This does not reduce 
the annual debt payment (other than by the first State Loan with is paid off now) in the 
near future and does not get nearly as much CIP done in the planning period, but the 
District has substantially reduced annual debt payments (by the amount of the USDA 
loan payment that we are not getting in this scenario) when the second State loan is 
gone in 2022.  This would be an added boost for self funding capital projects in these 
outer years.   
 
It is important to note that with both of these scenarios we are speculating on what 
future management of the District, both staff and elected, may want to do.   
 
Staff has discussed these two approaches and can see positives with going either way: 
 
USDA Loan: 


 Construct more capital projects in the near term. 
 Get the 2017 CIP done relatively quickly.  We may want to do this project in two 


segments regardless because of its size, but it would be completed within two 
years. 


 Debt payments are reduced some in the near term. 
 







USDA Loan and District Debt  4   
October 6, 2016 
                                                                 


 


Self Finance: 
 Do the critical segment next summer. 
 Easier on field staff (less construction project oversight) 
 Debt payments are reduced in the longer term.  


 
We need to move forward on this with either approach because we want to put this 
project, whatever size, out to bid in January to get the most favorable bids.  With the 
USDA loan approach haste is more essential because getting the funding approved will 
take some time and extra steps.  First on the list will be getting bond counsel selected 
and approved to start the process.  We have gotten a start on this because we have 
asked Brandis Tallman to identify bond counsel with USDA bond experience for their 
refinancing.  We'll get a test run through that experience.   
 
As stated above, staff has an open mind about these two approaches and Board 
Members may have ideas about other approaches as well.  We look forward to the 
discussion.  
 
 
 







PHASING KEY MAP


PHASE 1 (YELLOW)


SHEET        OF


Coastland Civil Engineering, Inc.
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT


2017 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT


PROPOSED PHASE MAP


1 1


PHASE 2 (MAGENTA)


PHASE 3 (BLUE)


Attachment 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIVER ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

RUSSIAN RIVER



AutoCAD SHX Text

MORNINGSIDE DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

OUTLET DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIVER ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANYON 2 RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

CANYON



AutoCAD SHX Text

7 RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIO NIDO RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

EAGLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEST



AutoCAD SHX Text

RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

RUSSIAN RIVER



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIVER RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORCHARD



AutoCAD SHX Text

OLD RIVER RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIVER RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOOTHILL BLVD



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAKE RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

OLD



AutoCAD SHX Text

RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

OLD RIVER RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOR REDUCED PLANS, THE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORIGINAL SCALE IS IN INCHES



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORIGINAL PLOT DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

707.571.8005                               707.571.8037 Fax



AutoCAD SHX Text

1400 Neotomas Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95405







Construction CM/Inspection Total Costs
Overall Project Budget $2,072,022 157,462$                      $2,229,484


Phase 1 Project Budget $711,070 $91,124 $802,194
Phase 2 Project Budget $609,191 $61,988 $671,179
Phase 3 Project Budget $780,874 $76,228 $857,102


Total Phase 1-3 $2,101,135 $229,340 $2,330,475


Difference by doing in phases $100,991


Sweetwater Springs Water District
Preliminary Engineer's Estimate


for
2017 Capital Improvement Project - Comparison of Costs


September 1, 2016







Attachment 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


Summary of Proposals Received for 2016 Refunding Installment Sale Agreement 
September 29, 2016


BB&T Govt. Fin. BBVA Compass Capital One J.P.M.Chase No Call J.P.M.Chase Callable Muni Fin Corp. [1] Texas Capital Bank Umpqua Bank


Interest Rate: 1.99% 2.70% a) 2.35% 1.84% 1.97% 3.10% 3.10% 2.48%


b) 2.59%


Rate Lock Terms: Rate is locked thru 30 days before closing a) Rate is locked thru Rate locked with a Rate locked with a Locked thru Closing Rate is locked thru 2 weeks before


Nov. 17, 2016 w/ formal credit app. November 24, 2016 Rate Lock Agreement Rate Lock Agreement Nov. 17, 2016 closing


(approx. 2 weeks) b) Rate is locked thru (Subject to breakage (Subject to breakage 


(60-day rate lock for September 26, 2017 fees) [2] fees) [2]


5 bps premium)


Prepymt. Provisions: Any pymt date Non-callable for AID on or after Non-callable Any date on or after Any pymt date Non-callable Years 1-3 at 103%


after Aug. 1, 2021 the first 10 years August 1 2022 at par August 2, 2021 at par on or after Years 4-6 at 102%


at par Aug. 1, 2021 at 102% Year 7 at 101% 


Par thereafter


Covenants:


Rate Covenant 1.15% 1.25% 1.25% 1.30% 1.30% 1.15% 1.25% 1.25%


Additional Bonds Test 1.15% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.15% 1.50% 1.25%


Net Asts:Funded Debt N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A <2 times


Bank Counsel [3]: $8,500 $10,000 $0 $8,500 $8,500 $0 $5,000 $10,000


Proposal Expiration: October 17, 2016 October 3, 2016 October 7, 2016 October 7, 2016 October 7, 2016


Financing Results:


Par 2,375,800 2,375,800 2,375,800 1,845,800


All-In TIC 2.36% 2.21% 2.34% 3.32%


Avg. FY Debt Service 222,352 220,493 222,106 218,015


Avg. FY Savings 11,662 13,524 11,905 15,998


Total Savings 142,334 165,009 145,343 159,622


NPV Savings 125,896 147,279 128,732 133,219


NPV Savings % 5.93% 6.94% 6.07% 7.22%


[1]  MFC is offering a rate reset. Payments would remain at 4.75% until 8-1-18, upon which time the rate would be reduced to 3.10% thru final maturity.  No bond counsel or escrow agent is required, 


and the prepymt. prem. on the prior loan will be waived.  No negative arbitrage would be incurred as the rate simply resets on  8-1-18, but no savings are achieved until after the rate reset occurs. 


The debt service and savings figures are net of the placement agent fee, which would be paid out-of-pocket by the District  (not rolled into the new financing amount) upon closing.


[2]   With JPMorgan Chase's rate lock, the District is subject to breakage fees once the rate is locked if the financing does not close by the expected closing date AND interest rates go down. (Fees are


typically $1,500 for every decrease in basis point. A 10 basis point drop would result in breakage fees of $15,000.)


[3]  Also, bond counsel, plcmt. agent, escrow/paying/COI agent, verification agent, CDIAC,  and misc. fees, as well as a prepayment penalty of 2%, apply to all proposals except MFC (see [1] above).


All proposals are subject to formal credit approval.  Banks that declined to submit a proposal: BofA, Bank of the West, CoBiz, Five Star Bank, Signature Bank, Western Alliance Bank and Zions Bank.







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET SUMMARY PROJECTION, 2013-2022


1


3% Sales Flat


FY16 Actual FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat Flat….


Water Bill Revenue


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,565 270,375 278,486 286,840 295,446 304,309 313,438 322,841 404,300          


Total Water Sales 2,245,959 2,079,454 2,141,837 2,206,092 2,272,275 2,340,444 2,410,657 2,482,977 2,557,466


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,349,828 2,420,323 2,492,933 2,567,721 2,644,753 2,724,095 2,805,818 2,961,766


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 114,846 110,788 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


Total Income 2,372,518 2,464,674 2,531,111 2,605,635 2,682,376 2,761,399 2,842,774 2,926,569 3,084,631


EXPENSES New GM


882,336 932,100 950,742 969,757 1,019,152 1,039,535 1,060,326 1,081,532 1,103,163


281,186 287,815 296,449 305,343 314,503 323,938 333,656 343,666 353,976


SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,219,915 1,247,191 1,275,100 1,333,655 1,363,473 1,393,982 1,425,198 1,457,139


SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase =


SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 527,910 533,189 538,521 543,906 549,345 554,839 560,387 565,991


TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,747,825 1,780,380 1,813,621 1,877,561 1,912,818 1,948,821 1,985,585 2,023,130


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $716,850 $750,731 $792,015 $804,815 $848,581 $893,953 $940,984 $1,061,501


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 67,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000


Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,375        278,486       286,840         295,446         304,309           313,438          322,841          404,300          


Tfers to CIRF 320,000          330,000        390,000       450,000         420,000         490,000           500,000          560,000          570,000          


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,375 708,486 776,840 755,446 834,309 853,438 922,841 1,014,300


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 84,066 9,475 2,245 4,174 9,369 3,272 515 7,142 7,201


Capital Budget
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS 2,579,000     USDA Loan


Net Operating Revenues** 404,066 339,475 392,245 454,174 429,369 493,272 500,515 567,142 577,201


Assessments 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481


Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 261,565          270,375        278,486       286,840         295,446         304,309           313,438          322,841          404,300          


Capital Interest 8,367              10,000          10,000         10,000           10,000           10,000             10,000            10,000            10,000            


Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 772,515          -               290,000       490,000         430,000           280,000          245,000          


TOTAL REVENUE 2,221,994 3,974,331 1,746,212 2,016,496 1,510,296 2,013,062 1,599,434 1,955,465 2,011,982


Total Debt Payments 1,035,961       1,099,017     1,114,550    967,930         967,930         967,930           967,930          967,930          967,930          


CIP 2016 CIP 2017 tate Loan Payo MR Filter 2020 CIP CIP 2021 CIP 2023 CIP 2024


Annual CIP 1,149,979 2,379,000     586,480       200,000         914,000         675,000           941,300 1,000,000


In-House Construction Projects, etc. 36,042 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 3,518,017 1,741,030 1,207,930 1,921,930 1,682,930 1,007,930 1,949,230 2,007,930


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 12 456,314 5,182 808,566 -411,634 330,132 591,504 6,235 4,052


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,070,574       1,526,888     1,242,069    1,560,635      1,149,001      1,049,133        1,640,638       1,366,872       1,125,924        


Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 34,613            427,871        127,519       592,705         181,071         81,203             672,708          398,942          157,994          


NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 413,518          296,314        341,662       558,566         542,366         615,132           631,504          707,535          799,052          


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 1.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Get 
USDA Loan, State Loan paid off 


Total Salary


9/29/2016







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET SUMMARY PROJECTION, 2013-2022


2


3% Sales Flat


FY16 Actual FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat Flat….


Water Bill Revenue


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,565 270,375 278,486 286,840 295,446 304,309 313,438 322,841 404,300          


Total Water Sales 2,245,959 2,079,454 2,141,837 2,206,092 2,272,275 2,340,444 2,410,657 2,482,977 2,557,466


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,349,828 2,420,323 2,492,933 2,567,721 2,644,753 2,724,095 2,805,818 2,961,766


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 114,846 110,788 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


Total Income 2,372,518 2,464,674 2,531,111 2,605,635 2,682,376 2,761,399 2,842,774 2,926,569 3,084,631


EXPENSES New GM


882,336 932,100 950,742 969,757 1,019,152 1,039,535 1,060,326 1,081,532 1,103,163


281,186 287,815 296,449 305,343 314,503 323,938 333,656 343,666 353,976


SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,219,915 1,247,191 1,275,100 1,333,655 1,363,473 1,393,982 1,425,198 1,457,139


SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase =


SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 527,910 533,189 538,521 543,906 549,345 554,839 560,387 565,991


TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,747,825 1,780,380 1,813,621 1,877,561 1,912,818 1,948,821 1,985,585 2,023,130


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $716,850 $750,731 $792,015 $804,815 $848,581 $893,953 $940,984 $1,061,501


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 67,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000


Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,375        278,486       286,840         295,446         304,309            313,438          322,841          404,300          


Tfers to CIRF 320,000          330,000        390,000       450,000         420,000         490,000            500,000          560,000          570,000          


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,375 708,486 776,840 755,446 834,309 853,438 922,841 1,014,300


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 84,066 9,475 2,245 4,174 9,369 3,272 515 7,142 7,201


Capital Budget
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Net Operating Revenues** 404,066 339,475 392,245 454,174 429,369 493,272 500,515 567,142 577,201


Assessments 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481


Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 261,565          270,375        278,486       286,840         295,446         304,309            313,438          322,841          404,300          


Capital Interest 8,367              10,000          10,000         10,000           10,000           10,000              10,000            10,000            10,000            


Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 772,515          -               400,000       220,000         330,000            150,000          


TOTAL REVENUE 2,221,994 1,395,331 1,856,212 1,526,496 1,730,296 1,913,062 1,599,434 1,825,465 1,766,982


Total Debt Payments 1,035,961       1,099,017     1,013,550    1,013,550      1,013,550      1,013,550         866,811          866,811          866,811          


CIP 2016 CIP 2017-1 CIP 2017-2 CIP 2017-3 CIP 2023 CIP 2024


Annual CIP 1,149,979 802,000       672,000         857,102            200,000          914,000          675,000          


In-House Construction Projects, etc. 36,042 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 1,139,017 1,855,550 1,053,550 1,725,550 1,910,652 1,106,811 1,820,811 1,581,811


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 12 256,314 662 472,946 4,746 2,410 492,623 4,654 185,171


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,070,574       1,326,888     927,549       1,400,495      1,185,241      857,651            1,350,275       1,204,928       1,390,099        


Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 34,613            227,871        (86,001)       386,945         171,691         (155,899)           483,464          338,117          523,288          


NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 413,518          296,314        442,662       512,946         496,746         569,512            732,623          808,654          900,171          


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 2.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET SUMMARY - 3% Increase, 
Phased 2017 CIP, No USDA Loan


Total Salary


9/29/2016





		Item V-B -  USDA Loan, Examining District Debt

		Item V-B.1 - 2017 CIP Phase Map

		Item V-B.1A - 2017 CIP Phase Costs

		Comparison



		Item V-B.2 - SSWD Summary of RFP Responses 9-29-16

		Item V-B.3 Tables 1 and 2 Financial Planning Model

		T1 FY16 USDA Loan

		T2 FY16 No USDA Loan 












SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : October 6, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  REVIEW OF AND COMMENTS ON THE SONOMA COUNTY 
WATER AGENCY FISH FLOW PROJECT 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 


regarding his review of the Sonoma County EIR on its proposal to change Water 
Rights Decision 1610 with changes proposed by the Fish Flow Project and on the 
meeting he and Richard Holmer have had to discuss the EIR and provide 
comments, and provide direction to staff.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In mid August 2016, the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) released the long-
awaited draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) on the Fish Habitat Flows and Water 
Rights Project, also called the Fish Flow Project. There was an open house meeting on 
August 24, 2016, presented by the Sonoma County Water Agency at the Community 
Center in Monte Rio.  This EIR is the environmental document for their proposed 
changes to Water Rights Decision 1610 which governs how releases from the dams that 
regulate the Russian River are made and sets a range of required minimum flows at 
various points in the River.  It appears that SCWA wants to achieve two major actions 
from the proposed changes to Decision 1610: 
 


 Make permanent the flow changes ordered by the Biological Opinion for 
endangered salmonid species in the Russian River (BO), and 


 
 Change the Decision 1610 hydrologic index so that 1) it is based on Lake 


Mendocino instead of Lake Pillsbury, has more ( from 3 currently to 5) conditions 
on which to base releases, 3) takes account of the reduced inflows from the Eel 
River, and 4) has more flexibility seasonally, going from seasonal decisions to 
monthly decisions.   


 
Based on the schedule released when the EIR was made publicly available, comments 
on the draft EIR must made by October 17, 2016.  On September 13, 2016, SCWA 
made a public presentation of the draft EIR at the Board of Supervisors meeting.  I was 
in attendance and requested more time to review the document (it's very long - 
someone stated over 3,000 pages) given its length and the amount of time SCWA took 
to produce it (years to produce versus weeks to review).  There were others that made 







Fish Flow Project EIR  2 
October 6, 2016 


 


the same comment.  Supervisor Carrillo made a public statement that he and 
Supervisor Gore would be asking for an extended time for review and additional public 
meetings.  I understand the Board of Supervisors will consider this request at their 
October 4, 2016 Board meeting.  I will not be able to attend that meeting, but we will 
know the result for our October 6 Board meeting.   
 
The Board asked for a comment letter to be prepared for this meeting.  Because of the 
likely extension of time for comments, this agenda report is aimed at encouraging 
discussion of the draft EIR issues and direction for the comment letter.  
 
On September 28 Director Holmer and I met to discuss our ideas about the draft EIR.  
Director Holmer is most concerned about the impacts of this project on salinity in the 
River and we don't see any discussion of that in the EIR - it should be there, even if 
there's no known impact and there should be more in the EIR on water rights, perhaps 
specifically State permitted and licensed water rights and how this project affects them 
(see below).   
 
I have additional concerns.  The first item that should be settled is to what degree 
and/or purpose does the District review this EIR?  The most immediate concern is 
whether the Fish Flow Project has an impact on the District's water supply and to what 
extent is that discussed in the draft EIR.  But we are all residents of the lower Russian 
River, we have knowledge of riverine issues and status as one of the few public 
agencies with open meetings in the lower River.  Perhaps we, as a District, should be 
taking a broader view of this EIR.  The Fish Flow Project has not had much lower River 
input and residents of this area don't have many venues for professional review (to the 
extent one can call the District professional regarding reviews of EIRs) of a project that 
can have a big impact on their enjoyment of the lower River.   
 
To that extent, below are some issues that I believe could be raised with this draft EIR 
(with the understanding that I haven't read much of the draft EIR yet (most but not all 
and it's a big document) and much of what I have read has been done quickly, so I may 
have missed things that are addressed somewhere.  Major issues to date, in no 
particular order: 
 


 Background - the BO is a collaboration between certain fish biologists with a point 
of view that lower flows for a variety of reasons are better for certain fish in the 
Russian River and water managers who have a vested interest in having lower 
flows so they can deliver more water to their water contractors.  The people who 
have a vested interest in keeping flows higher in the River did not participate in 
these negotiations.  The Board of Supervisors represent both interests and 
arguably should be seeking a balance in making any decisions (see below).   


 
 Piecemealing.  That's EIR jargon for splitting a big project into smaller 


constituents for easier review and perhaps approval.  There should have been a 
more broadly scoped EIR process for the much larger project that has come out 
of the Biological Opinion process. This draft EIR addresses only a part of this 
larger project that is bringing and has brought many changes to the Russian 
River.   The overall project is a water supply project for the water contractors of 







Fish Flow Project EIR  3 
October 6, 2016 


 


SCWA that is constrained by a Biological Opinion (BO) which requires lower 
minimum flows at a number of locations along the mainstem of the River, sand 
barrier maintenance at the mouth of the River to provide for better maintenance 
of estuary conditions in the River near the mouth (which is one of the reasons for 
the lower minimum flows in the lower River), and certain actions in Dry Creek to 
make that better habitat for coho salmon, and perhaps other things.  Higher 
releases from Lake Sonoma should be included in the possible alternatives.  This 
larger project is an opportunity to change the Decision 1610 hydrologic index to 
better reflect current and future conditions.     


 
 What decisions are the SCWA directors or the Board of Supervisors (same 


people) making with or being supported by this EIR?  The decision to change the 
D1610 permits has already been submitted by SCWA.  This EIR appears to be 
actually to provide CEQA clearance for the California State Water Resources 
Board to make their decisions on the permits.  As such, the State Board should 
be the lead agency and should be providing the direction for this.  In practice, 
that rarely works out well so it may be a good thing that they are not involved.  
It would be better to make these decisions among ourselves but I don't see 
where that opportunity is being provided here. 


 The Proposed Project includes the following components (from the draft 
 EIR):  


o amendments of the Water Agency’s water right permits to replace the 
existing hydrologic index (which is based primarily on Lake Pillsbury 
inflows) with the new Russian River Hydrologic Index; State Board 
makes this decision 


o changes to the minimum instream flow requirements in these permits 
to improve rearing habitat conditions for juvenile steelhead and coho 
salmon; State Board  


o changes to these minimum instream flow requirements to improve 
conditions for fall-run Chinook salmon migration; State Board 


o extending the deadlines for completing full beneficial use in these 
permits to December 31, 2040, and State Board 


o adding the Occidental Community Services District and Town of 
Windsor existing points of diversion and re-diversion to the authorized 
points of diversion in these permits. State Board 


 
 Contractor Diversions - there's (at least) two issues here: total amount of 75,000 


AFY and taking the total amount in all years in the modeling of alternatives.  In 
the modeling contractor diversions are a given - 75,000 for all alternatives in all 
years except when Lake Sonoma goes below 100,000 AF of storage which I don't 
know happens.  In actual practice, whenever there's a drought we all urge our 
customers to conserve water.  Contractor diversions should be tied to the Hydro 
Index -when it goes to schedule 3 or lower, contractor diversions should be 







Fish Flow Project EIR  4 
October 6, 2016 


 


lowered and that should be included in the modeling.   This also goes contrary to 
current State practices whereby we all had to go through a process to reduce our 
water use by 20% by 2020 compared to a baseline from the early 2000's. 
Related to this is SCWA's 2015 diversion of 44,000 AF and the draft EIR Baseline 
of 55,000 - can and should diversions increase that much?  I understand SCWA's 
desire to preserve their 75,000 AFY diversion amount but it may not be a realistic 
number.   And if it is a realistic number (or whatever that number is) reductions 
in drought years do not conflict with having a higher number on the permit or 
license.    


 
 Hydro Index - why not alternatives in EIR?  The EIR states that in the technical 


committee analyses that came up with the new Hydro Index, consideration was 
given to an Index that upper and lower River components with the lower River 
component based on Lake Sonoma.  There's no discussion of why the preferred 
HI was chosen and no analysis given in the EIR on the differences.  It makes 
sense that the lower River should be governed by Lake Sonoma water levels as 
that's where the summer releases are coming from.   


 
 Minimum Flows - the BO has minimum flow for normal years but stipulates 


nothing for drier years, yet the alternatives presented and the proposed project 
have lower minimum flows than required by NMFS.   


 
 Eel River Diversions.  These are likely getting cut off in the future and the EIR 


should properly discuss this.  It's mentioned in the Cumulative Chapter (which is 
poorly organized and written) but not give the prominence it deserves.   


 


 Alternatives - lack of, much can be written about this.  The Baseline is not 
the real baseline; it's a situation that existed for maybe two years but it's 
claimed for much longer.  Perhaps there should be a Baseline 1 and 2 like 
there is a No Project 1 and 2.  Table 7-1 list of alternatives flow scenarios is 
not clear - what do these alternative names mean?  For examples BO, NP1, 
NP2 can be guessed, but what are F1-18?  How are they different?  Why are 
these flow alternatives not part of bigger list of alternatives considered by 
this EIR? 


 
 The measure of a water supply is its performance during a drought - again 


contractor diversion are a given and minimum flows are a result of the modeling.  
It should be reversed - minimum flows are a given and lets see what can be 
diverted. 


 
 Climate Change should be included in cumulative impacts analyses.  We are told 


climate change will result in longer droughts for this area; it might even be 
mentioned.  However, if droughts are longer some of their analyses will be off 
and that should be examined by this EIR   


 


 4.0.6 Effects Determined Not to be Significant and Not Discussed Further - 
This project is going to increase diversions to 75,000 AFY yet there are no 







Fish Flow Project EIR  5 
October 6, 2016 


 


population and housing, traffic, and land use and planning (and maybe 
agricultural resources) effects?  Who is going to use the extra 20,000 AFY, 
where are they going to live, and how are they going to get to work?   The 
end project results in a 40% increase in water use.  In a era of better and 
better water conservation, why would more water be needed if there weren't 
at least 40% more people to use that water? 


 Experimental Program - alternatives should be provided that ties this decision to 
BO schedule.  The lower flows in the lower River are required by the BO only 
because NMFS biologists thought these lower flows were needed to keep the sand 
barrier which is needed to keep ocean water out of the lagoon (or estuary, I'm 
confused by these terms in the EIR).  However, the sand barrier maintenance 
program is experimental and its not clear what level of lower flows are needed to 
establish or keep the sand barrier, or even if within a certain range any level of 
flow makes any difference.  And we have no evidence (that I am aware of) that 
indicates this experimental program is improving the fish stocks.    


 
 Cumulative impacts chapter should analyze climate change plus no Eel River.  


SCWA is asking for an extension of time to 2040, yet the FERC license for the 
Potter Valley Project will be reviewed will before that deadline.  Climate change 
effects are said to be happening now.  They need to be fully discussed in the EIR.   


 
 Lower River water quality appears to be impacted by the cumulative impacts; this 


is an issue that needs more examination.  The EIR says no mitigation possible 
but only because it's not considering all alternatives - releases from Lake 
Sonoma.     


 
 The EIR should have a better examination of water rights.  The EIR states that 


the Water Agency does not make decisions on water rights but the State Board 
does and the State Board will use this EIR to make decisions regarding the water 
rights associated with D1610.  Some of the water rights mentioned in the EIR 
have minimum bypass flows but those bypass flows were likely established with 
the minimum flows established by D1610.  The EIR should examine this issue in 
more detail and also examine whether other water rights associated with the 
Russian River will be impacted by anything associated with this Project.   


 
There are other issues as well, but most of the above do not directly impact District 
water supplies.  I haven't read all of the EIR yet and perhaps there are other issues - 
haven't touched the recreation section.  How far do we want District comments to go? 
 
If the comment period is extended, we can discuss this again at a future meeting, 
depending on the comment period extension.  If it is not extended, we need to consider 
what kind of comments are needed and whether we need a special meeting to approve 
those comments.   
 
 
 
 
 







Fish Flow Project EIR  6 
October 6, 2016 


 


 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : October 6, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  ACTION DISCUSSION RE STATE WATER LOSS REDUCTION 
PROGRAM 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 


regarding the new State mandated Water Loss Reduction Program and provide 
direction, if needed.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
On August 24, 2016 I attended a workshop that was advertised as required training 
on the State's new water loss reporting requirement - Water Loss Training 
Assistance Program was the title of the workshop.  At the time of accepting this 
training I new nothing of any new reporting requirement; I thought this was followup 
training for similar water loss training I had attended one year ago.  It turns out this 
is a new State mandate from Senate Bill 555 that requires all urban water 
suppliers in California to conduct validated annual Water Loss audits.  I have been 
using this software (it's an Excel spreadsheet) for reporting this as part of the 
District's reporting for the California Urban Water Conservation Coalition (CUWCC), 
so I am familiar with it.  For CUWCC, no training is required to use the software (it's 
somewhat self explanatory); the State mandate requires (I believe) training and all 
submittals will be reviewed by trained personnel.    
 
The District has been tracking its water losses for some time. We report monthly the 
water loss as a percentage of the difference between water produced and water sold 
divided by water produced.  To the Water Loss Technical Assistance Program (TAP) 
staff, that is an insufficient metric - it doesn't explain enough of what's going on with 
the distribution system.   
 
Senate Bill 555 has established a Statewide Water Loss Management Program. 
Apparently is has the following stages: 
 
Phase 1 - Establish annual M36 water auditing (M36 is the American Water Works 
Association (AWWA) bulletin on water loss auditing) 
Phase 2 - Achieve minimum standard of audit reliability 
Phase 3 - Manage water loss performance for long-term reduction 
 







State Water Loss Reduction Program  2 
October 6, 2016 


 


We are currently starting Phase 1 and I understand its ending goal is submittal of a 
validated water audit in November 2017.  
 
Water Audits are intended to become as commonplace and standardized as financial 
audits.  We do our finances every year and according to SB 555 we need to do our 
distribution system too.  Not a bad idea, but I worry about State performance 
standards.  Purposes of audits: 
 
1. Systematically account for known water volumes to estimate volumes of later 
loss. 
2. Evaluate data source reliability. 
3. Communicate water distribution efficiency. 
 
The table below, which is the water balance table (not even closely to scale), shows 
what this is all about: 
 


BILLED 
METERED 


CONSUMPTION 


 
BILLED 
AUTHORIZED 
CONSUMPTION BILLED 


UNMETERED 
CONSUMPTION 


 
REVENUE 
WATER 


UNBILLED 
METERED 


CONSUMPTION 


  


AUTHORIZED 
CONSUMPTION 


 
UNBILLED 


AUTHORIZED 
CONSUMPTION 


UNBILLED 
UNMETERED 


CONSUMPTION 


CUSTOMER METER 
INACCURACIES 


UNAUTHORIZED 
CONSUMPTION 


 


$ $ $ 
APPARENT LOSSES 


$ $ $ 


DATA HANDLING 
ERRORS 


 


WATER 
SUPPLIED 


 


WATER 
LOSSES 


REAL LOSSES            


 
$ $ $ 


 
NONREVENUE 


WATER 
 


 


 
The far left column represents all water supplied by the District.  What I report each 
month as water losses is water supplied minus billed authorized consumption (we 
have very little billed unmetered consumption).  The water balance table shows the 
various components of water losses - unbilled authorized consumption (process 
water used in District operations, for example), apparent losses - meter 
inaccuracies, theft of water, data errors, and the real losses caused by leaks.   
 
The water loss reduction program emphasizes attacking the components of water 
loss and understanding the effects and impacts of these water losses.  Customer 







State Water Loss Reduction Program  3 
October 6, 2016 


 


meter error is a water loss if fixed will bring revenue to the District.  Process water - 
flushing, for example, is needed and will always be a component of District 
operations.  Real losses can be reduced by fixing leaks - it's the only loss in the table 
that gets reduced by our construction programs.   
 
A focus of this water loss reduction program is getting the information correct.  How 
accurate are the many numbers we use in District operations?  How accurate are our 
production meters?  What level of customer meter accuracy testing can we (a small 
district) afford to do?   
 
The output of the water loss reduction program is a completed water audit.  
Attached to this report is Appendix E of the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan 
which is the most recent water audit done by District staff.  This audit form was 
completed prior to taking the last training.  The audit form has a first page 
(Reporting Worksheet) which has the input data plus some results and a second 
page (System Attributes and Performance Indicators) which has performance 
standards.  In this particular month (December 2015 but it was in the February GM 
report) I reported water losses of 21.2% which is 140 (Non-revenue Water in the 
worksheet) divided by 658.  The Reporting Worksheet gives a lot more detail.  
 
In the performance standards costs are assigned to the various kinds of water 
losses.  I think this approach undervalues the benefits of doing water main and 
service replacements.  Yes, it identifies the money saved in water if we reduce real 
losses, but it doesn't place values or assign costs to customer interruptions and the 
looming catastrophes that will occur without a regular water main replacement 
program.   
 
On the Reporting Worksheet), small numbers are in boxes to the left of the input 
values.  For example, the first data input is Volume from own sources (658).  That 
has an '8' in the box to the left of the 658.  Each of these input values has a grade 
from 1-10 that estimates the accuracy of the input data.  Below is the explanation 
for the range for the first value:  
 







State Water Loss Reduction Program  4 
October 6, 2016 


 


 
I gave it an 8 but after the training I suspect it should be lower.  The mantra given 
in training was "meet, beat or retreat", meaning if the data does not meet or beat all 
of the criteria listed, one must go to a lower number.   This set of 1-10 values are 
input for all input data. 
 
Through some calculation not disclosed to us, all the data accuracy numbers are 
combined to come up with the Water Audit Data Validity Score near  the bottom of 
the Reporting Worksheet which is 74 for this particular iteration.  When I went 
through the spreadsheet after the training and revised some numbers, the validity 
score came out to 63.  Data validators will likely be more critical of our data than I 
am and the score may be lower when we submit our first validated audit to the State 
The TAP trainers insisted that the number is not a grade but information about our 
data.  I'm not so certain that it may become a grade some day.  
 
It's important to note that the AWWA water audit software has had a thorough 
development by experts in the field and has been around for a while.  The State of 
California is following the lead of Georgia which has implemented this program there 
and the training program uses in part people associated with the Georgia program.  I 
don't understand much of the software but it has been heavily evaluated nationwide 
and is endorsed by AWWA.  
 
We have more training to go through prior to submitting a validated water audit to 
the State.  The next step (they are calling it a 'wave') is a teleconference with TAP 
staff.  The third wave is a visit to the District by TAP staff (I believe), and the 4th 
wave is submittal of a validated audit by November 2017.   
 
Benefits of the Program: 
 


 Knowing more about your system is a good thing. 







State Water Loss Reduction Program  5 
October 6, 2016 


 


 Having a third party approach to evaluating our system is good for the Board 
and general public - staff may be giving a rosier picture about what's going 
on. 


 Demonstrates the differences between non-revenue fixes and revenue 
producing fixes.  


 Focusing on data accuracy is a good thing - we should be reporting accurate 
information.   


 Everyone using the same format done in the same way allows for better 
comparisons with other water utilities.   


 
Concerns: 
 


 This is another report to the State. 
 This may lead to performance standards that require spending on items or 


projects  we may not think belong in that order of priority. 
 Focus may become on data validity score or some other performance standard 


and not on fixing leaks - again, I don't think this approach accurately values 
the cost of water leakage.    







Water Audit Report for:
Reporting Year:


All volumes to be entered as: ACRE-FEET PER YEAR


Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments


WATER SUPPLIED Pcnt: Value:


Volume from own sources: 8 658.000 acre-ft/yr 7 acre-ft/yr
Water imported: acre-ft/yr acre-ft/yr
Water exported: acre-ft/yr acre-ft/yr


Enter negative % or value for under-registration
WATER SUPPLIED: 658.000 acre-ft/yr Enter positive % or value for over-registration


.


AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION
Billed metered: 7 518.000 acre-ft/yr


Billed unmetered: acre-ft/yr


Unbilled metered: acre-ft/yr Pcnt: Value:


Unbilled unmetered: 8.225 acre-ft/yr 1.25% acre-ft/yr


AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 526.225 acre-ft/yr


WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 131.775 acre-ft/yr


Apparent Losses Pcnt: Value:


Unauthorized consumption: 1.645 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr


Customer metering inaccuracies: 5 10.571 acre-ft/yr 2.00% acre-ft/yr
Systematic data handling errors: 1.295 acre-ft/yr 0.25% acre-ft/yr


Apparent Losses: 13.511 acre-ft/yr


Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 118.264 acre-ft/yr


WATER LOSSES: 131.775 acre-ft/yr


NON-REVENUE WATER
NON-REVENUE WATER: 140.000 acre-ft/yr


= Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered


SYSTEM DATA


Length of mains: 9 65.0 miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: 8 3,800


Service connection density: 58 conn./mile main


Yes
Average length of customer service line: ft


Average operating pressure: 7 75.0 psi


COST DATA


Total annual cost of operating water system: 9 $1,733,000 $/Year


Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): 10 $2.73
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 7 $300.00 $/acre-ft


 WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:


 PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:


     1: Volume from own sources


     2: Customer metering inaccuracies


     3: Billed metered


 Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:


$/100 cubic feet (ccf)


              <----------- Enter grading in column 'E' and 'J' ---------->


Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed             


*** YOUR SCORE IS: 74 out of 100 ***


A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score


Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed


Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied


Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? 


 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 Reporting Worksheet


Enter a positive value, otherwise a default percentage of 1.25% (of billed metered) is applied and a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed


2015 1/2015 - 12/2015
Sweetwater Springs Water District  (4910004/0028)


?


?


?


?


?


? Click to access definition


?


?


?


?


?


?


Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the input 
data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades


?


?


?


?


?


?


(length of service line, beyond the property boundary, 
that is the responsibility of the utility)


Use buttons to select
percentage of water supplied


OR
value


?Click here: 
for help using option 
buttons below


?


?


?


?


+


+ Click to add a comment


 WAS v5.0


+


+


+


+


+


+


American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.


?


?


?


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+


+ Use Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses


?


To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where 
the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it.


Reporting Worksheet      1AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0


Appendix E.  AWWA Water Audit Reporting Worksheet







Water Audit Report for: Sweetwater Springs Water District  (4910004/0028)
Reporting Year:


System Attributes:
Apparent Losses: 13.511                               acre-ft/yr


+              Real Losses: 118.264                             acre-ft/yr


=            Water Losses: 131.775                             acre-ft/yr


Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): 77.43 acre-ft/yr


Annual cost of Apparent Losses: $16,065


Annual cost of Real Losses: $35,479 Valued at Variable Production Cost


Performance Indicators:


Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: 21.3%


Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: 3.1%  Real Losses valued at Variable Production Cost


Apparent Losses per service connection per day: 3.17 gallons/connection/day


Real Losses per service connection per day: 27.78 gallons/connection/day


Real Losses per length of main per day*: N/A


Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: 0.37 gallons/connection/day/psi


From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): 118.26 acre-feet/year


1.53


* This performance indicator applies for systems with a low service connection density of less than 32 service connections/mile of pipeline


 AWWA Free Water Audit Software:
 System Attributes and Performance Indicators


*** YOUR WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE IS: 74 out of 100 ***


Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:


2015 1/2015 - 12/2015


Return to Reporting Worksheet to change this assumpiton


?


?


American Water Works Association.
Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.


 WAS v5.0


Financial:


Operational Efficiency:


Performance Indicators      2AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0





		Item V-D - State Water Audit Requirement

		Item V-D.1 Appendix E. AWWA-WAS-v5-09152014 Cal2015

		Reporting Worksheet

		Performance Indicators








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 6, 2016  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in August were 22,893 units (52.6 AF, Monte 
Rosa cycle) and production was 71.3 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production 
were higher (49.8 AF and 65.5 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage increased a bit 
(21.8) and is still staying at historically low levels.   The reduction from August 2013, the 
State Board standard, was 19%,  GPCD for August was 78.8.  Figure 1 shows sales, 
production and % difference for the Guerneville and Monte Rio  systems since 2010.   


 
2. Leaks:  In August we had 18 total leaks and spent 97 man-hours on them.   Those are 


more leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and to August one year ago (11 
leaks, 54 man-hours).    Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total 
breaks line as well. The District continues to be at historic lows for this.         


   
3.  Russian River Flow: Russian River flow (Figure 3) is looking higher than usual for this 


time of year.  The BO minimum flows are being exceeded considerably - more like D1610 
minimum flows.  


 
4. River Lane Property Sale: I have heard from Russian River Rec and Parks people that the 


grant looks like it is going to happen. 
 
5. El Bonita Well Field Flooding Plan: It appears we have worked out a solution with the 


State Division of Drinking Water on this.  We will be putting out an annual notice that well 
field flooding may be an issue for people with compromised immune systems.  That notice 
will be going in water bills (October and November for Guerneville System customers) and is 
attached to this report.  When actual flooding happens we will notify customers of this 
situation by robocalls.  If turbidity increases in pumped water during a flooding event we will 
put out boil water notices via robocalls and sandwich board notices.   


         
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:  One toilet rebate reported for September. 
 
7. In-House Construction Projects: One in-house project was completed in September: 


unclogged corp stop on Front Street, Monte Rio  (12 man-hours). 
 
8. Gantt Chart:   The only item in the Gantt Chart is adoption of the Urban Water 


Management Plan which is on the agenda for this meeting.  Also on the Gantt Chart but not 
listed for this month is SCWA water rights - this is on the agenda as well.  







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
October 6, 2016 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
October 6, 2016 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2016 Compared to 
Earlier Years, and the 2009-15 Average, Updated September 27, 2016


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2013


2014


2015


2016


09-15 Avg


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: October 6, 2016 



